
Roll Call: 

Minutes: 

Southgate City Council Agenda 
Council Chambers 

14400 Dix-Toledo Rd., Southgate, Michigan 48195 

Wednesday October 18, 2023 

6:30pm Worb Study Session 

1. Officials Reports

2. Discussion of Agenda Items

7:00 pm Regular Meeting 

Ayres-Reiss, Colovos, George, Graziani, Kowalsky, Kuspa, Rauch 

1. Work Study Session Minutes dated October 4, 2023
2. Regular City Council Meeting Minutes dated October 4, 2023

Scheduled Persons in the Audience: 

Consideration of Bids: 
Scheduled Hearings: 

Communications • A 11 

1. Letter from Mayor; Re: Award for Pest Control (Waiver of Bid)
2. Letter from Mayor; Re: Award for Computer Security Keys (Waiver of Bid)
3. Letter from Mayor; Re: Award for Flagpoles (Waiver of Bid)
4. Memo from Administrator; Re: Update to Annual Business License Fees
5. Memo from City Clerk; Re: Approval of Early Voting Location for Presidential Primary Election
6. Letter from Mayor; Re: Appointment to Dangerous Building Hearing Board
7. Memo from Administrator; Re: Parkside Gardens and Southwinds Lease Extensions
8. Memo from Administrator; Re: Resolution for Charitable Gaming License for a Southgate

Based Non- Profit

9. Memo from Laura Walsh; Re: Updated SMART Bus Driver Drug & Alcohol Policy

Communications "811 
- (Receive and File): 

Ordinances: 

Old Business: 

New Business: 

Unscheduled Persons in the Audience: 

Claims & Accounts: Warrant #1483 $1,388,092.79 

Adjournment: 

Janice M. Ferencz, City Clerb 

Page 5 
Page 8 

Page 19 
Page 23 

Page 25 
Page 26 

Page 27 
Page 43 

Page 57 



City of Southgate 
Regular City Council Meeting 

October 4, 2023 

A Regular Meeting of the Council of the City of Southgate was held on Wednesday, October 4, 2023 in the 
Southgate City Hall Council Chambers and was called to order at 7:00 PM by Council President Zoey Kuspa. 

Present: 
Absent: 
Also Present: 

Minutes: 

This meeting began with the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Priscilla Ayres-Reiss. Bill Colovos. Karen George. Christian Graziani. Greg Kowalsky, Zoey Kuspa. Phil Rauch 

Mayor Joseph G. Kuspa. City Attorney Ed Zelenak. City Administrator Dan Marsh. Assistant City 
Administrator/Finance Director Doug Drysdale. City Clerk Janice Ferencz. City Treasurer Chris Rollet. City Engineer 
John Hennessey. Public Safety Director Joe Marsh. Fire Chief Justin Graves. Police Chief Mark Mydlarz. DPS 
Director Kevin Anderson. Building Inspections Director Tim Leach & Recreation Director Julie Goddard 

Moved by Colovos, supported George, RESOLVED, that the minutes of the City Council Work Study Session dated 
September 20, 2023 be approved as presented. Carried unanimously. 

Moved by George, supported by Ayres-Reiss, RESOLVED, that the minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting 
dated September 20, 2023 be approved as presented. Carried unanimously. 

Communications "A": 

l. Letter from Mayor: Re: Emergency Camera and Lock Repairs (Waiver of Bid) moved by Colovos,
supported by George, RESOLVED THAT the Southgate City Council waive the bidding process and
approve the award for emergency security camera and door lock repairs to D/ A Central Inc. ( 13155
Cloverdale, Oak Park, Ml 48237) in the total amount of $12,729.66. Motion carried unanimously.

2. Memo from Administrator; Re: Public Hearing Request for Repair or Demolition of 13630 Edison moved by
Kowalsky, supported by Ayres-Reiss, RESOLVED THAT the Southgate City Council concurs to schedule a
public hearing to discuss the Dangerous Buildings Board's recommendation regarding 13630 Edison on
November l st during the regularly scheduled Council Meeting. Motion carried unanimously.

3. Letter from Mayor; Re: Auction Bid for Sale of Sewer Vactor Truck moved by Colovos, supported by Ayers
Reiss, RESOLVED THAT the Southgate City Council approve the auction bid amount for the sale of the 2007
Sterling Sewer Vactor Truck in the net amount of $47,500.00 to Biddergy.com. Motion carried unanimously.

4. Letter from Mayor; Re: Approval Change order No. 001 (Alley Reconstructionl Humphrey Cul-de-Sac &
Burns Avenue Reconstruction moved by George, supported by Kowalsky, RESOLVED THAT the Southgate
City Council approve Change Order No. 001 in the amount of $129,680.00, plus 10% contingency of
$12.968.00, to G.V. Cement Contracting Company (20000 Dix Toledo Rd, Brownstown Charter Twp, Ml
48183) for the alley reconstruction project. Motion carried unanimously.

5. Letter from Mayor; Re: Award for Emergency Sanitary Sewer Repairs at 16046 Eureka Road moved by
Ayres-Reiss, supported by Rauch, RESOLVED THAT the Southgate City Council waive the bidding process
and approve the award for emergency sanitary sewer repairs at 16046 Eureka Road to RJ&J Enterprises
( 10229 N. Dixie Highway, South Rockwood, Ml 48179) in the not-to-exceed amount of $95,000.00. Motion
carried unanimously.

6. Letter from Mayor; Re: Authorize Payment for Police Academy Tuition moved by Colovos, supported by
Rauch, RESOLVED THAT the Southgate City Council accept the Michigan Public Safety Academy



Regular City Council Meeting 

October 4, 2023 

Assistance Grant in the amount of $72,000.00, and authorize payment to Schoolcraft College for police 
academy tuition in the amount of $20,810.30. Motion carried unanimously. 

7. Memo from Administrator; Re: Southgate Veterans Memorial Library Policy & Procedure Update moved
by George, supported by Rauch, RESOLVED THAT the Southgate City Council approve the Southgate
Veterans Memorial Library Policy and Procedure Manual as updated by the Library Commission on June
7, 2023. Motion carried unanimously.

Ordinances: 

1. Memo from Administrator; Re: First Reading of Changes to Section 1298.01 /cl 11) of City Code of
Ordinances moved by Kowalsky, supported by Rauch, RESOLVED THAT the Southgate City Council gives
the first reading and waives the second reading to adopt the change to the code of ordinances, Section
1298.01 ( c) ( 1), according to the proposed language. This ordinance will be otherwise known as
Ordinance no. 1038. Motion carried unanimously.

Claims and Accounts: 

Moved by Graziani, supported by Rauch, RESOLVED, that Claims and Accounts be paid as outlined on Warrant 
# 1482 for $1,890,689.63. Motion carried unanimously. 

Adjournment: 

Moved by Colovos, supported by George, RESOLVED THAT this Regular Meeting of the Southgate City Council 
be adjourned at 7:12 P.M. Carried unanimously. 

Zoey Kuspa 
Council President 

Janice M. Ferencz 
City Clerk 

2 



City Council 

Work Study Session 
October 4, 2023 

An Informal Meeting of the Council of the City of Southgate was held on October 4, 2023 at 6:30 P.M. 
and called to order by Council President Zoey Kuspa. 

Present 

Absent: 
Also Present: 

Priscilla Ayres-Reiss, Bill Colovos. Karen George, Christian Graziani, Greg Kowalsky, Zoey Kuspa, Phil Rauch 

Mayor Joseph G. Kuspa. City Attorney Ed Zelenak, City Administrator Dan Marsh, Assistant City 
Administrator/Finance Director Doug Drysdale. City Clerk Janice Ferencz, City Treasurer Chris Roi/et, City 
Engineer John Hennessey, Public Safety Director Joe Marsh, Fire Chief Justin Graves, Police Chief Mark 
Mydlarz, OPS Director Kevin Anderson, Building Inspections Director Tim Leach & Recreation Director 
Julie Goddard 

Mayor Kuspa, Public Safety Director Marsh and Councilman Co/ovos presented Officers Matthias 
Szymoniak & Christopher Parsons with Department Life Saving Awards. 

Mayor Kuspa gave a resolution proclaiming the month of October as National Disability Employment 
Awareness Month. 

Discussed the following agenda items: 

• Emergency Camera and Lock Repairs-Waiver of Bid
• Public Hearing Request for Repair or Demolition of 13630 Edison
• Auction Bid for Sale of Sewer Vactor Truck
• Approval of Change Order No. 001 (Alley Reconstruction) Humphrey Cul-de-Sac & Burns

A venue Reconstruction
• Award for Emergency Sanitary Sewer Repairs at 16046 Eureka Road
• Authorize Payment for Police Academy Tuition
• Southgate Veteran's Memorial Library Policy & Procedure Update
• First Reading of Changes to Section 1298,01 (c) (1) of City Code of Ordinances

This meeting ended at 6:58 pm. 



JOSEPH G. KUSPA 

Mayor 

JANICE M. FERENCZ 

City Clerk 

CHRISTOPHER P. ROLLET 

Treasurer 

October 13, 2023 

To the Honorable 
City Council 

illity nf �nutqgatr 

Southgate, Michigan 48195 

- CITY COUNCIL -

ZOEYKUSPA 

Council President 

CHRISTIAN GRAZIANI 

BILL COLOVOS 

KAREN E. GEORGE 

PHILLIP J. RAUCH 

PRISCILLA AYRES-REISS 

GREG KOWALSKY 

Re: Recommendation to Approve Award for Pest Control (Waiver of Bid) 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

I have reviewed the above and concur with the City Administrator's 
recommendation to waive the bid process and approve the pest control agreement 
with All Season's Pest Control, Southgate, Michigan, in the monthly amounts of 
$3,000.00 per month for the remainder of 2023; $3,500.00 per month for 2024; 
$3,750.00 per month for 2025; and $3,881.25 for 2026 (3.5% increase). 

Your concurrence on this matter would be greatly appreciated. 

Funds are available in the City's General Fund. 

Sincerely, 

JGK/law 

NORMA J. WURMLINGER MUNICIPAL BUILDING 

14400 DIX-TOLEDO ROAD• SOUTHGATE, MICHIGAN 48195 • 734-258-3022 • FAX: 734-246-1414 

page; 



JOSEPH G. KUSPA 

Mayor 
- CITY COUNCIL -

Z0EYKUSPA 

Council Pre.�ident JANICE M. FERENCZ 

City Clerk CHRISTIAN GRAZIANI 

BILL COL0V0S 

KAREN E. GEORGE 

PHILLIP J. RAUCH 

PRISCILLA A YRES-REJSS 

GREG KOWALSKY 

CHRISTOPHER P. R0LLET 

Treas11rer 

illtty nf �nutqgatr 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

RE: 

Honorable Mayor and City Council 

Douglas Drysdale, Assistant City Administrator / Finance Director 
}::)

October 13, 2023 � 

Recommendation to Approve Award for Pest Control {WAIVER OF BID}

I have reviewed the above with the City Administrator and concur with his 
recommendation to waive the bidding process and approve the award for a pest control 
agreement through December 31, 2026 to All Seasons Pest Control (Southgate Ml). 

The monthly amounts will be $3,000/month for the remainder of 2023, $3,500/month 
for 2024, $3,750/month for 2025, and $3,881.25/month for 2026 (3.5% increase). 

Adequate funds are available in the General Fund. 

Proposed Motion 

Waive the bidding process and approve the award of an agreement for pest control 
through December 31, 2026 to All Seasons Pest Control in the amount of $3,000 per 
month for 2023, $3,500 per month for 2024, $3,750 per month in 2025, and $3,881.25 
per month in 2026. 

NORMA J. WURMLINGER MUNICIPAL BUILDING 

14400 DIX-TOLEDO ROAD• SOUTHGATE, MICHIGAN 48195 • 734-258-3022 • FAX: 734-246-1414 

page 3 



All Seasons Pest Control 

13759 Dix Toledo Rd. Southgate, MI 48195 

(734) 285-3200

Pest Control Agreement 

Business: City of Southgate 

Address: 14400 Dix-Toledo Rd. 

State: Michigan 

Telephone: 734-285-3021 

City: Southgate 

Zip Code: 48195 

Contact Person: 
---------------

I. Services to be provided include: Placement of exterior tamper-proof bait stations in multiple
areas of the city, including alleyways and residential homes for rodent monitoring and
elimination. Inspection and monitoring of surrounding areas for breeding and harborage, as
well as for debris, unkept lawns and other factors that may contribute to rodent infestations.
Reports of possible ordinance violations will be sent to the city on a weekly basis.

II. Your cooperation is vital to ensure the most effective result. Whenever conditions conductive
to the breeding and harborage of pests covered by this contract are reported by ALL
SEASONS PEST CONTROL COMPANY, and are not corrected by the property owner,
ALL SEASONS PEST CONTROL COMPANY cannot assure satisfactory services.

III. TERMS:
This agreement shall be effective for an original period of 3 years and shall be reviewed for
renewal by both parties 30 days prior to the end of the agreement period.

IT IS AGREED THAT ALL SEASONS PEST CONTROL COMPANY SHALL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE 

FOR INSECT OR RODENT DAMAGE TO PRODUCTS OF OR THE BUILDING'S CONTENTS 

Monitoring will be done at each location once a month until activity subsides. The cost of 
service shall be billed at $3,000.00 per month for the remainder of (2023), $3,500.00 per 
month (2024), increased to $3,750.00 in (2025), and an annual increase of 3.5% thereafter. 

Any balance 45 days past due or further will be subject to a 2.5% interest rate. 

Submitted for: ALL SEASONS PEST CONTROL COMP ANY 

By:
�

d-r� 1mo . le 

Accepted for: CITY OF SOUTHGATE 

By: __________ _ 

By: ___________ _ 

Date: ________ _ 

Date: ________ _ 

Date: 
--------- page4 



JOSEPH G. KUSPA 

Mayor 

JANICE M. FERENCZ 

City Clerk 

CHRISTOPHER P. ROLLET 

Treasurer 

October 12, 2023 

To the Honorable 
City Council 

illity nf �nutqgnte 

Southgate, Michigan 48195 

- CITY COUNCIL -

ZOEYKU SPA 

Council President 

CHRISTIAN GRAZIANI 

BILL COLOVOS 

KAREN E. GEORGE 

PHILLIP J. RAUCH 

PRISCILLA AYRES-REISS 

GREG KOWALSKY 

Re: Recommendation to Approve Award for Computer Security Keys (Waiver of Bid) 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

I have reviewed the above and concur with the IT Director's recommendation to 
award the purchase of computer security keys to Smartpoint Solutions, Richmond, 
VA, in the amount of $27,652.00. It is requested the bid process be waived as 3 
quotes were received from 3 different vendors with Smartpoint Solutions having 
the lowest cost. 

Your concurrence on this matter would be greatly appreciated. 

Funds are available in the City's ARPA Funds. 

Sincerely, 

JGK/law 

NORMA J. WURMLINGER MUNICIPAL BUILDING 

14400 DIX-TOLEDO ROAD• SOUTHGATE, MICHIGAN 48195 • 734-258-3022 • FAX: 734-246-1414 

page� 
�



JOSEPH G. KUSPA 

Mayor 

JANICE M. FERENCZ 

City Clerk 

· CITY COUNCIL·

ZOEYKUSPA 

Cou11ci/ Preside11t 

CHRISTOPHER P. ROLLET 

Treasurer 

OJtty nf �nutqgutr 

CHRISTIAN GRAZIANI 

BILL COLOVOS 

KAREN E. GEORGE 

PHILLJP J. RAUCH 

PRISCILLA AYRES-REISS 

GREG KOWALSKY 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

RE: 

Honorable Mayor and City Council 

Douglas Drysdale, Assistant City Administrator/ Finance Directo�}).
October 13, 2023 

Recommendation to Approve Award for Computer Security Keys 
(WAIVER OF BID) 

I have reviewed the above with the IT Director and concur with his recommendation to 
waive the bidding process and approve the award for computer security keys to 
Smartpoint Solutions (Richmond VA) in the amount of $27,652.00. Quotations were 
received from three vendors, with Smartpoint Solutions being the lowest cost. 

Funds for this purchase will be provided by the City's ARPA funds. 

Proposed Motion 

Waive the bidding process and approve the award for computer security keys to 
Smartpoint Solutions in the amount of $27,652.00, utilizing ARPA funding. 

NORMA J. WURMLINGER MUNICIPAL BUILDING 
14400 DIX-TOLEDO ROAD• SOUTHGATE, MICHIGAN 48195 • 734-258-3022 • FAX: 734-246-1414 

page 6 



<!Citp ®f �·ontbgate 
:iiBepattm.ent of 3htf ormatton 'Qtetbnologp 

i4710 Reaume Parkway 
Southgat�, Ml 4al, 95 

734.284.38.0<Y 

3Bir.ector of 3lnformation 'Otec�ttolom, 
Jason Rucker 

To: Public Safety Director Joe Marsh, City Administrator Dan Marsh, and Finance Director Doug Drysdale 

From: Director Jason Rucker, Information Technology Department 

Date: October 12th
, 2023 

Subject: Computer Security Key Project- Request of Funds 

Greetings, 

I am writing to formally request the allocation of ARPA funds to bolster our city's cybersecurity 

measures. In light of recent compliance assessments conducted by the FBI CJIS auditors, the 

implementation of Two-Factor Authentication (2FA) has been identified as a mandatory step. However, I 

wish to draw your attention to a more forward-thinking approach. As the industry progresses, it is 

evident that Multi-Factor Authentication (MFA) will inevitably become an essential requirement within 

the next decade. 

The prevalence of 2FA in various facets of our daily lives, such as on line banking, underscores its 

significance. This authentication method involves the use of both a traditional username and password, 

coupled with an additional layer of security, often delivered through a text message or an authenticator 

app. Looking ahead, Multi-Factor Authentication (MFA) emerges as the next level of safeguarding our 

digital assets, offering an unparalleled level of protection. 

To expedite and fortify our login processes for staff members, I propose the integration of FIPS 

Validated USB security keys. This progressive approach not only enhances our overall security posture 

but also streamlines the authentication experience. The proposed method entails a three-step 

verification process: possession of the USB security key, knowledge of the designated personnel PIN 

code, and physical insertion of the key into the computer. 

It is worth noting that this approach effectively mitigates the threat of phishing attacks and 

other malicious tactics, as the perpetrators would require physical presence to execute the required 

steps. This stands in stark contrast to the vulnerability posed by conventional username and password 

combinations, which are susceptible to manipulation and compromise. It is of utmost importance to 

emphasize that the suggested solution aligns with FBI CJIS regulations, adhering to the stringent NIST 

FIPS 201-2 standards. 

Our proposition resonates with established practices within the federal government, where this 

authentication protocol has been adopted successfully. Furthermore, the Chief Information Officer of 

the State of Michigan is currently piloting a similar initiative. By embracing this innovative direction, our 

page 7 



<!Citr <8f' �o,utbgate 
�epartment of 3lnformation �ec�nolow

14710 Reaume Parkway 
Southgate, �I 48195 

734'.284.3800 

lBitecto.t of 3Jntormation 'C!Cetlj11oloru> 
Jason Rucker 

city will position itself as a trailblazer, proactively securing the integrity of our personnel, data assets, 
computer infrastructure, and network architecture. 

In light of the aforementioned, I wholeheartedly recommend that we engage the vendor, 
SmartPoint (SP), to facilitate the procurement of the proposed security keys, known as Yubikeys, 
manufactured by Yubico. The total investment required for this endeavor amounts to $27,652, 
encompassing the provision of two security keys per employee and an additional contingency supply for 
exigent situations, including device loss, damage, or theft. 

For your convenience, I have attached a quotation from CDW-G, ETS, and SP, along with a 
comprehensive Frequently Asked Questions document provided by Yubico. These resources should offer 
valuable insights as you navigate the decision-making process and engage with the council. 

Thank you for your attention to this matter, and I eagerly anticipate the opportunity to further 
discuss and implement this pivotal enhancement to our city's cybersecurity infrastructure. 

Thank you, 

Jason Rucker 

Director of Information Technology 

page 8 



Yubikey 5 Series 400 $ 

Unit Prices 

City of Southgate Ml 
Computer Security Keys 

Summary of Cost Proposals 

Total Unit Prices 

69.13 $ 27,652.00 $ 77.75 

$ 

$ 

Total Unit Prices Total 

31,100.00 $ 80.00 32,000.00 

page 9 



!i� j !iMARTPDINT
.- SOLUTIONS 

Prepared By Zach Parkes 

Company Address 1400 Belleville St 

Richmond, VA 23230 

USA 

Email zparkes@smartpointsolutions. com 

Quote Number 00000080 

Created Date 10/13/2023 

Expiration Date 11/15/2023 

Payment Terms Net30 

louorEI 

Quote To Jason Rucker 

Director Information Technology 

City of Southgate 

Direct: 734-284-3800 

Internal: 6805 

JRucker@SouthgateMl.gov 

14710 Reaume Parkway Southgate, Ml 48195 

Ship To Name City of Southgate 

Ship To Southgate, Ml 

United States 

Subtotal 

Grand Total 

$27,652.00 

$27,652 .00 

PLEASE SEND ALL ORDERS TO BIZOPS@smartpointsolutions.com 

page 10 



Thank you for choosing CDW. We have received your quote. 

Hardware Software Services IT Solutions Brands Research Hub 

QUOTE CONFIRMATION 

JASON RUCKER, 

Thank you for considering CDW•G for your technology needs. The details of your quote are below. If 
you are an eProcurement or single sign on customer, please log into your system to access 
the CDW site. You can search for your quote to retrieve and transfer back into your system for 
processing. 

For all other customers, click below to convert your quote to an order. 

Convert Quote to Order 

··,,;Rl!,OTE # QUOTE DATE QUOTE"ff:EFERENOE · , • .cus:roi-1eR·# GRAND TOTAL 
--���----+---------1--------''-.--'---'--'--+--••••'• ••••••••••••••••••••••••••oe••••••••••••• ••••••••••••• •""••••••••••••••••• 

NMFF436 7/31/2023 NMFF436 6532143 $46,650.00 

QUOTE DETAILS 

\:, . ,I.,',/\, �¼Th��ciw;¥�. ;/ E,X:T,\!PRiCE I 
,:..��t.•, ,:,\ ... ,...i�,.li!'iM·,;'t�.;.;��-\•J q:-t,,1,c,�l.:if.11W...\� .. ,!',-1 ' ..... , . �· ... .. .. •.�; •�t. . I 

Vublco YubiKey 5 NFC FIPS - USB security key 600 7494271 $77. 75 $46,650.00 

Mfg. Part#: 5060408464229 

Electronic distribution - NO MEDIA 

Contract: Michigan Master Computing-MiDEAL (071B6600110) 

Billing Address: 
CITY OF SOUTHGATE 
JASON RUCKER 
14400 DIX TOLEDO RD 
SOUTHGATE, Ml 48195-2598 
Phone: (734) 258-3049 
Payment Terms: Net 30 Days-Govt State/Local 

Sales Contact Info 

Shipping Address: 
CITY OF SOUTHGATE 
JASON RUCKER 

SUBTOTAL 

SHIPPING 

SALES TAX 

GRAND TOTAL 

14400 DIX TOLEDO RD 
SOUTHGATE, MI 48195-2598 
Phone: (734) 258-3049 
Shipping Method: ELECTRONIC DISTRIBUTION 

CDW Government 
75 Remittance Drive 
Suite 1515 
Chicago, IL 60675-1515 

Haris Imamovic I 800.808.4239 I haris.imamovic@cdwq.com 

$46,650.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$46,650.00 

I LEASE OPTIONS I 
'---------------------�pagell 



,: Fr,tVTOTAL : FMV .LEASE OPTION 

$46,650.00 $1,261.88/Month 

1•,:;· •,B0'.fOTAL, 
•·.' ( ' 

$46,650.00 

BO !!EASE OPTION 

$1,454,08/Month 

Monthly. payment based on 36 month lease, Other terms and'options are avail_�b.l�,,�ontact,your Account Manager for details, Payment quoted 
'is subject tb change, 

(w'ti(fina;ce? , 
I'· . ·•:

,
··.' :.-.

. · '. :,.,,, ·,.:::,i:.-,,, ,·. , , , ,
tr t'\1.ci·�;r Upfront ;�;sts. G_�t rn/products y�u '�eed ;ii�oui ir

n
P,a�t1ri,i:'cash 'riotPr�s�rve you,r i,,;orki�g ca8ital and existing credit line, 

'\•� \, •. • ::: ' •\ • 
! I • I • • 

I 
'• ' •' ,,',, ' ',, ._: ' (. ,, ' ' ' ' • 

1,;.;_iF;le),lible .. �,ayirieAt Ter,ms . •i-0·0% flnirncin€) with nd' money· down, payment def err.a.ls· ·a�d-,payment schedules that match your ·company's 
r., ,{' •, ; .;, •r I ' • • •.:, • ,t . • 

btis
?;ss

,:
cl�, ·,:

' 
.
• : ·, 

. . . ,/,. 'j. ''.,:,i·:,;;-?s+.-!· ·· ,· , , , 
• Predictpble', Low Monthly Payments. Pay_ over time. Lease payments are fl5ied c1nd qin be·tailored to.your budget levels or revenue streams, 

I ,,' 

' 
·, 

• 
', ,

, 
;··,' � • .' ', /:: ,,,,: ._ 

•· Technology Refresh, Keep current technology with minimal financial impact or risk, ·Add0on .or upgr,ade•during the lease term and choose to 
.:, r�tur-.�:'o{purchase the equipment at end of lease. ·1 .. ·/ 

,. 

� · B.un.dle -Costs'. You ·c.a·J'] combine hardware, software, and services Into a, single transac'tion-'.ancj':pay· for your software licenses over time! We ••, f • • I ', •· ' 1• •,'' 

(' khow 'your challenges and understand the need' for flexibility. . ·. . • - , . ' . . 
. ' �,·, 'f, . .',:;:1_·_._':.� --.·

.
··:, 

. 
' ' ' . r. , 1 1 , • ., :'l' , 

:� G��eral-'ferms and Conditions: 
,,;::' t;,·,,'/! �, • •, ' , , • I • ,f

j 
,' ,/_,,' ' 

, 'ih'ls quo,t�.-is,n0t legq·lly binding and Is for discussion purposes only. The rates-are•e,stlmate only·and are based on.a collection of Industry data 
from1-�1Jmero

0

us sources. All ;ates and financial qu;tes are subject to fl�al review,,,qppr.��ar, and do'turrientatlon ·by; our leasing partners. 
' 

,, •, • 
' , ; • ' � I I , •. • • , • ' ' , · Pa_yments .abov� exclude all,appllcable taxes. Financing Is subject to credlt,approv111 and, rev!�� of fJn.a,I equipment and services configuration, 

, , F�ii: M�.r!<�t' Value leases are structured with-th� assumption, that the.equipment ,has a residual val,ue at the end of the lease term: 
. . ' . _: �' ' 

' '' . . . ,, ' . 

Need•'Help? .• •.' 
"1·":, 

■ My Account I■ Support I■ Call 800.800.4239 

Page 2 of 2 

page 12 



ESTIMATE 

Electronic Tech Solutions LLC 

PO Box 1673 
Southgate, Ml 48195 

801:Jthgate, City of 

Bill.to 

City of Southgate 
14400 Dix-Toledo 
Southgate, Ml 48195 

Estimate details 

Estimate no.: 1017 
Estimate date: 08/31/2023 

Product or service 

1. Services

Yubikey 5 series - FIPS/NFC

billing@etsnow.net 
+ 1 (734) 635-4267

' '  

:L:CTRONIC 
T:CH 
SOLUTION1S 

Amount 

600 X $80.00 $48,000.00 

Total $48,000.00 

page 13 



FAQ for End Users C 

Below you will find a variety of questions that you will likely encounter from your end 

users. Some of these questions will not be directly answered in this document as they 

are driven by your unique policies and integration. However, we have supplied 

suggested best practices and insight on how to answer these questions. 

1. What is a YubiKey?

A Yu bi Key is a compact and extremely robust hardware security key that stops account

takeovers. It is both faster and easier to use than existing legacy solutions.

You may want to personalize this response with some additional verbiage on why

your organization selected the YubiKey to provide secure authentication.

2. What happens if I lose my YubiKey?

This will largely be determined by your internal policy and procedures. However,

the recommended best practice for Yubico customers is to ensure that each user has a

spare key. We have them for our most valuable assets in life - our houses, our cars, our

PO and safety deposit boxes, etc. and Yubico encourages you to do the same for your 

digital devices. 

A spare key will enable your employees to securely authenticate with the exact same 

security level instead of downgrading it with less secure authentication methods, and it 

will enable the user to work without having to call the helpdesk support, guaranteeing 

productivity and decreasing money spent on supporting a user who is not able to 

authenticate. 

3. Does the YubiKey read my fingerprint when I touch it?

Only with the YubiKey Bio Series. For all others, the touch sensor on the YubiKey only

detects capacitive touch and is not biometric. By requiring the user to touch the YubiKey

to login it is verified that the person logging in is a real live human behind the computer,

and not a remote hacker, bot, or ma/ware.

4. Does it require batteries?

It requires no battery or cellular network connectivity. The YubiKey is crush-resistant and 

water-resistant. It is manufactured domestically in California and Sweden.

5. Does the YubiKey use Bluetooth (BLE) to communicate with my devices?

No, the YubiKey uses the secure NFC communication protocol. BLE does not provide

the security assurance levels of NFC and USB, and requires batteries and pairing that

create a poor user experience.

6. Will I need to change my PIN as frequently as my password? (if applicable to your

integration)

© Yubico 2022 

V 1.2 page 14 



No. your selected PIN is stored securely on the YubiKey and is never transmitted to any 

remote services where it could be intercepted so you will not be required to change your 

PIN as you would with your password. 

7. Can I use my YubiKey for personal accounts?

This is determined by your organization's policy. However, encouraging users to

leverage their YubiKey for business and personal accounts will reinforce good habits.

Additionally, if a hacker is unsuccessful in targeting specific employees in their place of

business, they will most likely attempt to compromise their personal accounts.

Since there are no shared secrets across services/applications, privacy and security is

maintained, thus there is no risk in using the YubiKey for both. If the user leaves the

organization, access can be revoked, so users can no longer access internal resources.

8. Can the YubiKey be used as a USB storage device?

The YubiKey has no functionality as a mass storage device and is recognized by the

computer as an HID (Human Interface Device, similar to a keyboard). The YubiKey is

designed to only be a user authentication or identification device.

© Yubico 2022 

V 1.2 page 15 



JOSEPH G. KUSPA 

Mayor 

JANICE M. FERENCZ 

City Clerk 

CHRISTOPHER P. ROLL.ET 

Treasurer 

October 12, 2023 

To the Honorable 
City Council 

<ttity nf �nutqgatr 

Southgate, Michigan 48195 

- CITY COUNCIL -

ZOEYKUSPA 

Council President 

CHRISTIAN GRAZIANI 

BILL COLOVOS 

KAREN E. GEORGE 

PHILLIP J. RAUCH 

PRISCILLA AYRES-REISS 

GREG KOWALSKY 

Re: Recommendation to Approve Award for Flagpoles (Waiver of Bid) 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

I have reviewed the above and concur with the City Administrator's 
recommendation to award the purchase of two flagpoles for the Southgate 
Veteran's Memorial Library to Rocket Enterprises, Inc., Warren, Michigan, in the 
amount of $4,500.00. It is requested that the bid process be waived so this project 
can be completed before Veteran's Day in November. 

Your concurrence on this matter would be greatly appreciated. 

Funds are available in the Library Fund. 

Sincerely, 

JGK/law 

NORMA J. WURMLINGER MUNICIPAL BUILDING 

14400 DIX-TOLEDO ROAD• SOUTHGATE, MICHIGAN 48195 • 734-258-3022 • FAX: 734-246-1414 

page1' 
lq 



JOSEPH. G. KUSPA 

Mayor 

JANICE M. FERENCZ 

City Clerk 

- CITY COUNCJL

ZOEY KUSPA 

Council President 

CHRISTOPHER P. ROLLET 

Trea.furer 

artty of �nutqgatr 

CHRISTIAN GRAZIANI 

BILL COLO VOS 

KAREN E. GEORGE 

PHILLIP J. RAUCH 

PRJSCJLLA AYRES-REISS 

GREG KOWALSKY 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

RE: 

Honorable Mayor and City Council 

Douglas Drysdale, Assistant City Administrator/ Finance Directov
October 12, 2023 

Recommendation to Approve Award for Flagpoles (WAIVER OF BID)

I have reviewed the above with the City Administrator and concur with his 
recommendation to waive the bidding process and approve the award for two (2) 
aluminum flagpoles to Rocket Enterprise, Inc. (Warren Ml) in the amount of $4,500.00. 

The bid process is requested to be waived as the City previously went out for bid in 2022 
and did not receive any formal bids other than the original quote provided by Rocket 
Enterprise. 

Funds for this purchase are available in the Library Fund. 

Proposed Motion 

Waive the bidding process and approve the award for two (2) aluminum flagpoles to 
Rocket Enterprise, Inc. in the amount of $4,500.00. 

NORMA J. WURMLINGER MUNICIPAL BUILDING 
14400 DIX-TOLEDO ROAD• SOUTHGATE, MICHIGAN 48195 • 734-258-3022 • FAX: 734-246-1414 

page 17 



ROCKET ENTERPRISE, INC. 
30660 Ryan Road, Warren, Ml 48092 
586/751-7600 PH/ 586/751-7636 FX 

Laura Walsh 
City of Southgate 
14709 Schafer Court 
Southgate MI 48195 

Laura, 

INQ#92653 - RCX25' 

October 11, 2023 

734/258-3022 
lwalsh@southgatemi.gov 

Thank you for your interest in the products and services of Rocket Enterprise, Inc. Below you will find pricing 
and specifications on the flagpole you have requested. 

Should you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact our office. 

We appreciate your consideration and look forward to being a part of your organization's Patriotic Flag Flying 
Tradition. 

Sincerely, 

Lisa Adams-Provenzano 

CONE TAPERED SPUN ALUMINUM FLAGPOLE: Brushed Satin Finish 

QTY PART#, HEIGHT, DESCRIPTION BASE TOP WALL TC TA EACH 

2 RCX25' BRUSHED SATIN FLAGPOLE 5" 3" .156" NT 0 $1,575.00 

1 DELIVERY, ASSEMBLY & COMPLETE INSTALLATION NT 0 $1,350.00 

l�SIALLATION LOCATION:
SOUTHGATE LIBRARY - MEMORIAL 
14680 DIX-TOLEDO ROAD 
SOUTHGATE Ml 48195 

SUB TOTAL 
*"NOTE: PRICING SHOWN IS FIRM FOR "60" DAYS** TAX 

TOTAL 

FLAGPOLE PACKAGE INCLUDES: * Gold Ball Top * Standard Truck Pulley* Halyard & 2 Stainless Steel C
l

ips* 
* Flash Collar * Ground Sleeve * Cast Aluminum Cleat *

EXTENDED 

$3,150.00 

$1,350.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

$4,500.00 
$0.00 

$4,500.00 

ABOVE PRICING DOES NOT INCLUDE CHARGES FOR: *Jackhammer through asphalt or concrete * Carting dirt off site * 

UPON ACCEPTANCE-PLEASE SIGN, DATE & RETURN YOUR ORDER APPROVAL-THANK YOU 

NAME & TITLE DATE page 18 





,JOSEPH G. KUSPA 
Mayol' 

JANICE M. FERENCZ 
City Cferk 

· CITY COUNCIL -

ZOEYKUSPA 
Comicll Presi1/e11t 

CHRJSTOPHER P. ROLLET 
n•e11:mrer 

Q.ltty nf ,®nutqgutr 

CHRISTL\N GRAZIANI 

BlLL COLOVOS 

KAREN E. GEORGE 

l'HILLll' J. RAUCH 

PRISCILLA A YRES-RF:lSS 

GREG KOWALSKY 

Memorandum 

To: Honorable City Council Members 

From: Dan Marsh, City Administrato'\[:)if\/\. 

Date: September 28, 2023 

Re: Recommendation for Update to Annual Business License Fees 

The Administration has reviewed and concurs with the recommendation of the Public 
Safety Director to update to the annual business license fee for pawnbrokers, secondhand 
and scrap dealers to go from $75/year to $500/year. This increase is permitted under MCL 
446.202(5) which sets the maximum annual license fee at $500. The increased business 
license fee will help offset the cost of maintaining the Leeds Online system which allows 
the above mentioned businesses to complete their required online reporting of 
transactions. The proposed changes to the annual business license fee would become 
effective in 2024. 

Propose Motion: To amend the annual business license fee from $75/year to $500/year 

for pawnbrokers, secondhand and scrap dealers beginning 2024. 

NORMA J. WURMLINGER MUNICIPAL BUILDING 

14400 DIX-TOLEDO ROAD• SOUTHGATE, MICIIlGAN 48195 • 734-258-3022 • FAX: 734-246-1414 

page It 

�?;, 



To: Honorable Mayor Joseph G. Kuspa 

From: Joseph Marsh, Director of Public Safety 

Re: Request to update business license fee for Pawn Shoprs/Second Hand Dealers 

Date: October 13th, 2023 

Mayor Kuspa, 

City Ordinance 833.15 Electronic Reporting of Transactions requires that all licensed pawnbrokers 
and second-hand dealers are required to electronically submit a record of each transaction in which 
the licensee received used goods by pawn, purchase, exchange, or consignment. Additionally, 
833.03 requires pawn shops or second hand dealers operating within the City to obtain a license to 
be able to operate their business. 

On May 3rd, 2023, City Council authorized the police department to purchase the Leads Online 
Investigations System service package as a means for pawn shops and second-hand dealers to 
report their transactions as required in our City Ordinance. Leads Online also provides other 
investigative resources for our department. The annual cost for our Leads Online program in 2023 
was $4,151.00 dollars. 

I have confirmed with Leads Online that currently we have four locations reporting to them within the 
City; those locations are 14k Gold & Diamond, American Jewelry & Loan, and two ecoATM's. It is my 
recommendation that we update the annual business license fee for pawnbrokers, second hand 
dealers, and scrap dealers to go from $75.00 per year to $500 per year to help offset the City's cost 
for the Leads Online program. 

With your concurrence, I respectfully request this item be placed on the City Council's agenda for the 
meeting scheduled on October 18th

, 2023, for the purpose of updating our annual business license fee 
for pawnbrokers, secondhand and scrap dealers beginning in 2024. 

Joseph L. Marsh 
Director of Public Safety 

page 21 



Memorandum 

To: Honorable City Council 

From: Jan Ferencz, City Clerk 

Date: October 12, 2023 

Re: Request for Approval of Early Voting Location for Presidential Primary Election 

Honorable City Council, 

On October 10, 2023, the Election Commission agreed to the locations for Early Voting for the 
Presidential Primary Election on Friday, both Saturdays and both Sundays at the Senior Center and 
Monday through Thursday at Parkside Gardens. With your concurrence, I respectfully request a 
resolution from city council approving the locations. 

Thank you 



.JOSEPH G. KUSPA 

Mayor 

JANICE M. FERENCZ 

City Clerk 

CHRISTOPHER P. ROLLET 

Treasurer 

October 3, 2023 

illity of �nutqgatr 

To The Honorable 
Southgate City Council 
Southgate, Michigan 48195 

Re: Appointments to Boards/Commissions 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

Please be advised I have made the following appointment: 

- CITY COUNCIL -

ZOEYKUSPA 

Cou11ci/ Preside11t 

CHRISTIAN GRAZIANI 

BILL COLOVOS 

KAREN E. GEORGE 

PHILLIP ,J. R AUCH 

PRISCILLA AYRES-REISS 

GREG KOWALSKY 

Dangerous Building Hearing Board - for a term expiring December 2024 

Ray Howard 

This appointment will fill the vacancy created by the passing of Tom Ozeranic. 

Your concurrence on this appointment is greatly appreciated. 

Sincerely, 

Mayor 

Cc: Janice Ferencz, City Clerk 

JGK/law 

NORMA J. WURMLINGER MUNICIPAL BUILDING 

14400 DIX-TOLEDO ROAD• SOUTHGATE, MICHIGAN 48195 • 734-258-3022 • FAX: 734-246-1414 

paged 
:)., (() 



.JOSEPH G. KUSPA 
Mayor 

JANICE M. FERENCZ 
City Clerk 

- CITY COUNCIL

ZO.EY KUSPA 
Co1mdl Pl'e.tidetlf 

CHRISTOPHER P. ROLLET 
Ti,easurer 

artty nf �nutqgutr 

CHRISTIAN GRAZIANI 

BILL COLOVOS 

.KAREN E. GEORGE 

l'HILLIP ,J, RAUCH 

PRISCILLA A YRES-RElSS 

GREG KOWALSKY 

Memorandum 

To: Honorable City Council Members 

From: Dan Marsh, City AdministratorJ:::VV\ 

Date: October 12, 2023 

Re: Parkside Gardens and Southwinds Lease Extensions 

The current lease agreement with Crystal Gardens for the Southwinds Golf Clubhouse and 
the Parkside Gardens Banquet Hall is set to expire in December 2023. The Administration 
believes it is in the best interest of the City to extend the lease agreement for three (3) 
years for each property beginning on November 1, 2023, and to create separate lease 
agreement amendments for each property. 

Attached in your packets you will find the following the proposed updated lease 
agreement amendments for each of the respective properties, the original lease 
agreement from 2011, and the 2012 amendment adding the golf course club house. 

There is an outstanding receivable on the current lease agreement. To address the 
balance in a timely manner, a promissory note and consent judgement agreement has 
also been included in your packets. 

If you have any questions please contact me. 

Proposed Motion #1: To authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the Parkside Gardens 

lease extension agreement with Crystal Gardens for a period of three (3) years beginning 

November 1, 2023 

Proposed Motion #2: To authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the Southwinds Golf 

Clubhouse lease extension agreement with Crystal Gardens for a period of three (3) years 

beginning November 1, 2023 

NORl\'lA J. WURMLINGER MUNICIPAL BUILDING 

14400 DIX-TOLEDO ROAD• SOUTHGATE, MICHlGAN 48195 • 734-258-3022 • FAX: 734-246-1414 

pageO 

�1 



COMMERCIAL LEASE AGREEMENT AMMENDMENT 

This Amendment is made and entered into this_ day of October, 2023, by and between the 
CITY OF SOUTHGATE, a Municipal Corporation, by and through its authorized representatives, 
whose address is 14400 Dix-Toledo Road, Southgate, MI 48195, hereinafter referred to as 
"Landlords," and CRYSTAL GARDENS - SOF INC., a Michigan Corporation, by ROGER J. 
ROELS, its President, whose address is 16703 Fo1t Street, Southgate, MI 48195, hereinafter referred 
to as "Tenant." 

RECITALS 
WHEREAS, the Landlord and Tenant are currently engaged in a public-private partnership to 

provide professional food services in the City of Southgate, County of Wayne, and State of Michigan; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Landlord does maintain at its premises certain banquet facilities; and 

WHEREAS, the Tenant is in the enterprise of managing banquet facilities and has a level of 
expertise in the administration, managing, marketing, and catering of banquet facilities and food 
service operations; 

NOW, THEREFORE, it is herein agreed by and between the Landlord and Tenant shall 
modify the current Agreement as follows: 

1. LEASED PREMISES

1.1 Landlord hereby lease to Tenant, and Tenant hereby lease from Landlord, a certain 
p01tion of commercial real property, hereinafter called the "Leased Premises". Said Leased Premises 
is the Banquet Center and adjoining areas including the kitchen, bar area, restrooms, storage rooms, 
and other adjoining portions of the prope1ty and common areas. 

1.2 Landlord and Tenant do herein acknowledge that Tenant shall have a non-exclusive 
use of the Leased Premises with the Landlord retaining the ability to utilize the defined premises for 
its own purposes. 

1.3 Tenant does herein have the exclusive right to market the respective Leased Premises 
for banquet service. The Tenant's ability to market said premises shall be exclusive except for the 
rights retained by Landlord. 

1.4 Tenant shall create and share a calendar by which Tenant and Landlord will 
communicate Leased Premises use. 

2. USE AND TERM

2.1 The term of this agreement shall commence on November 1, 2023 and continue for a 
period of three (3) years through October 31, 2026. 

2.2 The Landlord and Tenant shall have a mutual right to extend for an additional three 
(3) years the use and term of this Commercial Lease Agreement.

2.3 The Landlord and Tenant do fmther acknowledge that any additional extensions�ge 25



the Commercial Lease Agreement shall be negotiated between the respective parties. 

2.4 The Landlord and Tenant do further herein acknowledge and agree that either party 
herein may terminate the Commercial Lease Agreement with the providing of a one hundred eighty 
( 180) day notice. The parties do herein acknowledge and agree that any events that may be calendared
for date in excess of said notice period shall be exempted and the terms and condition of the Lease
Agreement shall apply to said pre-calendared events.

2.5 The Tenant must complete payments from the previous contract, in the amount of 
$25,000, by August 15, 2024. Failure to complete payments from the previous contract shall result in 
the termination of this Agreement. 

3. RENTANDMETHODOFPA YMENT

3.1 Tenant shall pay Landlord monthly. Tenant shall pay the greater of $600/month or 
twenty-two percent (22%) of gross sales of the Tenant from the banquet/catering services. In addition 
to the aforementioned monthly rental, Tenant shall pay Landlord ten percent (10%) of all off premise 
catering deliver to the Leased Premises. 

3.lA Tenant agrees to provide third patty testing of ice machine during the life of the
contract. Should the tenant stop third part testing of the ice machine the minimum monthly rent will 
be $700/month. 

3.2 Gross sales as herein identified shall include the gross receipts generated from any 
contracts and/or activity of the Tenant in the provision of banquet and catering services at the Leased 
Premises. Gross sales are further defined to include the price of food, all beverages, room fees, 
entertainment fees, and other like kind charges, and shall be reduced only be the applicable sales and 
use taxes generated and paid for said products. 

3.3 Tenant shall pay to Landlord the monthly rental payment no later than thirty (30) days 
from the last day in the preceding rental month. The first monthly rental payment (November 2023) 
is due by December 30, 2023. 

3.4 Tenant shall provide, as soon as commercially feasible, advance written notice to the 
Landlord of the reservation of the Leased Premises for a catering and/or banquet event and shall 
include in such noticed the following: 

3.4A Name 
3.4B Purpose and/or nature of the event, 
3.4C The number of paiticipants anticipated b contract to attend the event, 
3.4D The project budget for the event, which shall include the projected gross 

revenues 

3.4 Within seven (7) days of the completion of the event, the Tenant shall provide to 
Landlord a detailed listing of the final billing to Tenant's client and/or customer, 
which shall include charges for all services rendered for the banquet or catering event. 

4. USE OF PROPERTY
page 26 



4.1 The Tenant shall use and occupy the premises as designated by the Landlord for a 
banquet or catering operation and for no other purpose without the prior written consent of the 
Landlord. 

5. MASTER AGREEMNT

5.1 The Parties hereby agree to adopt the terms of the master Lease Agreement, previously 
executed on June 30, 2011 and all amendments thereafter with the exception of previous amendments 
related to Lease Premises, Use and Term, Consideration and Rent, Method of Payment and, Use of 
Property. 

6. EFFECTIVE DATE

6.1 Landlords and Tenants have signed this lease and it shall be effective on the date listed 
at the beginning of the Agreement. 

Whereas the Landlords have reviewed the terms of thi_s Lease Agreement this __ day of 
October, 2023. 

WITNESSES: CITY OF SOUTHGATE 

By: ____________ _ 
JOSEPH G. KUSPA, Mayor 

By: ___________ _ 
JANICE M. FERENCZ, Clerk 

Whereas the Tenant has reviewed the terms of this Lease Agreement this __ day of October, 
2023. 

WITNESSES: CRYSTALGARDENS -SOF INC. 

By: ___________ _ 
ROGER J. ROELS, its President 

page 27 



COMMERCIAL LEASE AGREEMENT AMMENDMENT 

This Amendment is made and entered into this ___ day of _____ , 2023, by and 
between the CITY OF SOUTHGATE, a Municipal Corporation, by and through its authorized 
representatives, whose address is 14400 Dix-Toledo Road, Southgate, MI 48195, hereinafter referred 
to as "Landlord," and CRYSTAL GARDENS-SOP INC., a Michigan Corporation, by ROGER J. 
ROELS, its President, whose address is 16703 Fort Street, Southgate, MI 48195, hereinafter referred 
to as "Tenant." 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the Landlord and Tenant are currently engaged in a public-private partnership to 
provide professional food services in the City of Southgate, County of Wayne, and State of Michigan; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Landlord does maintain at its premises certain banquet facilities and 
restaurant operations known commonly as the Southwinds Clubhouse; and 

WHEREAS, the Tenant is in the enterprise of managing banquet facilities and has a level of 
expe1tise in the administration, managing, marketing, and catering of banquet facilities and food 
service operations; 

NOW, THEREFORE, it is herein agreed by and between the Landlord and Tenant shall 
modify the current Agreement as follows: 

1. LEASED PREMISES

1.1 Landlord hereby leases to Tenant, and Tenant hereby leases from Landlord, a certain 
portion of commercial real property hereinafter called the "Leased Premises". Said Leased Premises 
is the Southwinds Club House. 

1.2 Landlord and Tenant do herein acknowledge that Tenant shall have a non-exclusive 
use of the Leased Premises with the Landlord retaining the ability to utilize the defined premises for 
its own purposes. 

2. USE AND TERM

2.1 The term of this agreement shall commence on November 1, 2023 and continue for a 
period of three (3) years through October 1, 2026. 

2.2 The Landlord and Tenant shall have a mutual right to extend the use and term of this 
Commercial Lease Agreement. 

2.3 The Landlord and Tenant do further acknowledge that any additional extensions to 
the Commercial Lease Agreement shall be negotiated between the respective parties. 

2.4 The Landlord and Tenant do fmther herein acknowledge and agree that either party 
herein may terminate the Commercial Lease Agreement with the providing of a one hundred eiglR�ge 28 



( 180) day notice. The parties do herein acknowledge and agree that any events that may be calendared
for date in excess of said notice period shall be exempted and the terms and condition of the Lease
Agreement shall apply to said pre-calendared events.

3. RENT

3.1 Tenant shall pay Landlord an annual rent of $8400 to be paid in ten (10) equal 
payments of $840 made monthly from March to December. 

3.2 Rent shall be adjusted annually for inflation based on the Consumer Price Index. 

4. USE OF PROPERTY

4.1 The Tenant shall use and occupy the premises as designated by the Landlord for the 
operation of the Clubhouse and for no other purpose without the prior written consent of the Landlord. 

4.2 The Tenant shall be the sole operator of the Leased Premises for the entire year. 

4.3 Hours of operation: April through September weather permitting. Doors to clubhouse 
will open from 10:00am -6:00pm. If golf leagues, tournaments or golf outings are booked hours may 
be adjusted earlier and/or lager depending on need. October through March doors will be open for 
special events and meetings. 

5. MASTER AGREEMNT

5 .1 The Parties hereby agree to adopt the terms of the master Lease Agreement, previous! y 
executed on June 30, 2011 and all amendments thereafter with the exception of previous amendments 
related to Leased Premises, Use and Term, Consideration and Rent and, Use of Property. 

6. EFFECTIVE DATE

6.1 Landlords and Tenants have signed this lease and it shall be effective on the date listed 
at the beginning of the Agreement. 

Whereas the Landlords have reviewed the terms of this Lease Agreement this __ day of 
____ ,2023. 
WITNESSES: CITY OF SOUTHGATE 

By: ____________ _ 
JOSEPH G. KUSPA, Mayor 

By: ___________ _ 
JANICE M. FERENCZ, Clerk 

Whereas the Tenant has reviewed the terms of this Lease Agreement this __ day of 

_____ ,2023 
WITNESSES: CRYSTAL GARDENS-SOF INC. 

By: ___________ _ 
ROGER J. ROELS, its President page 29 



. 

. .

COMMERCIAL LEASE AGREEMENT 

This agreement is made and entered Into this ___ day or ___ __, 201 l, by and 
between the CITY OF SOUTHOA TE, a Mwucipal Corporation, by and through it:, authorized 
repmentativcs, whose addn:ss is 14400 Dix-Toledo Road, Southgate, MI 4819S, hereinafter 
refened to as "Landlords," and SOF INC. OBA SOUTHGATE CRYSTAL OAR.DENS, a 
Michigan Corporation, by ROOER S, ROBLS, JIS President, whose address is 16703 Fort Street.. 
Southgate, MI 48195, herclnaftcr referred to as "Tenant." 

... ·--·---·······-RECITALS ---·----

WHEREAS, the Landlord does hold title to certain property in the City of Southgate, 
County of Wayne, and State pf Michigan; and 

WHEREAS, the Landlord docs maintain at its premises certain banquet facilities and ice 
rink conccssiollSj and 

. WHEREAS, the Tenant is in the enteiprisc ofmanaafng banquet facilities and has a level of 
expertise in the edministl'atlon, managing, marketing, and catering of banquet facilities; and 

WHEREAS, the Landlord and Tenant have entered into agreements regarding the lease of 
certain premises within the SOtJTHGA TB CMC CENTER to lease the banquet facilities and ice 
rink conoessions located therein; 

NOW, nmREFORE, it is herein agreed by and between the Landlord and Tenant as 
follows: · 

1. LEASED PREMISES

1.1 Landlords hereby lease to Tenants, and Tenants hereby lease from Landlords, a 
certain portion of commercial real propmy hereinafter called the "Leased Premises". Said Leased 
Premises are primarily the banquet room and adjoining areas including the kitchen, bar areas, 
restrooms, storage rooms, and other adjoining portions of the property and common areas and the 
ice rink concession facility. A detailed description of the premises will be defined and incorporated 
in Exhlbit A. 

1.2 Landlord and Tenant do herein acknowledge that Tenant shall have a non-exclusive 
use of the Leased Premises with the Landlord retaining the ability to utilize the defined pn:miscs for 
its own purposes. 

1.3 Tenant does herein have the exclusive right to market the res�ctive Leased 
Premises for banquet service. The Tenant's ability to market said premises shnll be exclusive 
except for the rights retained by Landloni. 

2. USE AND TERM

1 
2.1 The term ofthls apment shall commence on July I, 201 l ond continue for a period 

I 
·or five (S) years through June 3@, 2016.

' 

&-l()�( page O



2.2 The Landlord and Tenant shall have n mutual right lo extend the use and term of this 
Commercial Lease Apemcnt for an additional five year period from July l, 2016 th.rough JUM 30. 
2021. 

2J The Landlord and Tcnont do further ocknowledgo that any additional extensions to 
the Commm::fal Lease Agreement shall be negotiated between the re.spcctivc parties. 

2.4 The Landlord and Tenant do further herein acknowledge and agree that either party 
ben::in rn11 icnnir.111rc 1bc Commercial I case Agreement with tbc providing ob co� b•mdo:d cighQC 
(180) day noti��e parties do herein acknowledge and yrec that•any events that ma_Lbc
calendared for date in excess of said notice period shall be exempted and the terms and condition of
the Lease Agreement shall apply to said pre-calendared events. 

3, CONSIDERATION AND RENT 

3. t Tenant shall pay Landlord a rental based on the gross receipts generated by- the 
Tenant in the provision of banquet, catering. and concession services at the Leased Premises. Said 
<:onslderation shall be determined and paid for each rent.al year as follows: 

3.t.A Bach month during the initial tmn of said Lcesc:i, th.at being July 1, 2011 
tluougb June JO. 2016, the Tenant shall pay to Landlord the greater of 
fourteen hundred dollars ( $1,400.00) or twenty-two (2.2%) percent of the 
gross sales of the Tenant from banquet/catering services and concessions 
generated from the Leased Premises. In addition to the aforementioned 
monthly rental. Crystal 0ardcm will also pay to Landlord ten (10%) percent 
of all off premise catering delivered lo the leased premises. 

3.2 Toe Landlord and Tenant do further herein acknowledge that the parties may 
mutually extend the Commercial Lease Agrcemc:nt for an additional five (S) year period, from July 
1, 2016 through June 30. 202 l. Said option shall be mu�ly agreed to by and between the parties 
prior to the expiration of the initial lease �rm. 

3.3 Gross sales as herein identified shall include the gross receipts generated from any 
contracts and/or activity of the Tenant in the provision of banquet and catering services at the 
Leased Premises. Gross sales are further defined to include the price of food, all beverages, room 
fees, entertainment fees, and other lib kind charges, and shall be reduced only by the applicable 
sales and use taxes generated and paid for said products. 

3.4 The Tenant shall not acquue alcoholic beverages from any other source nor allow 
any other individual and/or entity to bring or maintain any alcoholic beverages at the Leased 
.Premises. Tenant's employees shall be eemtied by !he MLCC in a Server Training Program. 

4. MEntOD OF PA VMENT

4.1 Tenant shall pay to Landlord the monthly rental payment no later than thirty (30)
days fi'om the last day in the preceding rental month. The first monthly rental payment ( July 2011)
is due by August 30, 2011.

page 31 



4.2 Tenant shall provide, as soon as commercially feasible, advance written notice to the
Landlord of the reservation of the Leased P�mlscs ror a catering and/or banquet event and shall 
include In such notice the foil owing: 

4.2.A Name 
4.2,B Purpose and/or Dl1tU1'C of the event, 
4.2.C The number of participants anticipated by contract to attend the event. 
4 2 P Toe project hud&et fur !be cvcat, wbicb sbaU include lbc pmJc:cled gross 

··-----···· revenues. ---··········---------------

4.3 Within seven {7) days of the completion of the event. the Tcoant shall provide to 
Landlord a detailed listing of the final billing to Tenant's client and/or customer, which shall include 
charges for all services rendered for the banquet or catering evenL 

5. USE OF PROPERTY

5.1 The Tennnt sh.all use aod occupy the premises as designated by the Landloro for a 
banquet. catering, or ancillary operation or concession facility and for no other pUlpOse without the 
prior written consent of the Landlord. 

6. CONDmON OF PROPERTY

6.1 The Tenant does further herein acknowledge that Tenant has reviewed and inspected 
-the subjC1:lt property and ls satisfied with its present condition and does herein accept lhe Leased
Premises in its current nAS-1S". "WHERE-IS" condition.

6.2 The Tenant is furiher aware that any aesthetic repairs that may be required by the 
Tenant shall be petfonned by the Tenant at Tenant's sole and exclusive expense and that lhe nature 
of any repair to be perfonned by Tenant must be pie-approved in writing by Landlord including the 
type, manner. and use of materials to complete the repairs. 

7. MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR

7.1 Landlord shall assume and be responsible for the maintenance and repair of the 
following portion of the Leased Premises during the tenn of the Lease Agxcemcnt: 

7.1.A Roof. 
7.1.B Outer walls. 
7. l .C Any enclosed piplng that exists within the walls of the !!llbject property. 
7. l.D Plate glus. 
7.1.E Common areas. 
7.1.P HV AC systems. 

72 Tenant shall bear responsibility for repair and maintenance of the Leased Premises 
within the building without conlrlbution from the Landlord herein. 

7.3 Tenant shall be responsible for maintenance of the banquet facilities and concessions 

page 2 



area, cleaning of the facilities following a catering. event, and cleaning and maintaining the 
adjoining areas utilized by the cUentcle of the Tenant during the operation of the event. 

7.4 The Tenants will, at their own expense, keep the Leased Premises in good condition 
during its use and utilb!adon of the property and will, � the expiratlon of this Lease, deliver the 
premises to the Landlords in like condition to when taken, reasonable use and wear thereof and 
damase by the element.s excepted. The Tenants shall not make any alterations, additions or 
improvements Co the Leased Premiffl without the Landlords' advance written consent. All 
ahcmtioos, additions and impmveroeats made �• either Pad¥ npoA tbe prenuses dudRg tho tea 
hereof: except movable office furniture and trade §xtyres put in t1;t TeoM�' expense. shall beco� 
the property of the Landlords at the expiration of the term.· 

8. USE OP' PA.RKlNG LOT

8. l That rhe parties do herein ackllowledge that adjoining tho Leased Premises is a
parking lot. Said parking lot may be utilized by the Tenant in the management of a catering 
opecation at the Leased Prcmlscs. but that said uso shall be non�clusivc and the parking may be 
,and continued to be used by the Landlord and/or its designees. 

8.2 The Landlord shall assume the responsibility for trn: repair and/or maintenance of 
said parking lot area including, bu& not limited to, sealing. striping and maintenance. 

8.3 The Landlord shall further be mponslble for the removal of snow and shall utilize 
its best efforts to maintain the parking lot in a usable condltfon during periods of extreme weather. 

8.4 The Landlord may place appropriate use and regulations relative to the use of said 
parking lot during the tenn of lhe Lease. Said use and regulations relative Co the use of said parking 
lot may Include restrictions on the Tenant's ability to park vehicles for extended overnight periods 
and other like kind matters. 

9. OBLIGATION FOR VTILITIES

9.1 The Landlord will pay all charges made against the Leased Premises during the tenn 
hereof for utilities such as gas, water, heat, electricity and garbage collection. 

9.2 The Tenant herein shall assume any responsibility for the placement of any 
additional telephone connections and charge:1 for said COMcctioris and/or use. 

page 3 



10. USE OF EQUIPMENT AND MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS

10.1 Landlord and Tenant do herein agyee that Tenant shall have the ability lo utilize 
certninproperty·ofthe Landlord. Soid property shall include the following: 

10.l,A
10.l.B
IO.LC
JO,LQ
10.l.E
I0.1.F 

Tables. 
clmits.·

Banquet china set. 
Banquet flatwam ser, 
B�uet glasses. ----,-------------
iatclien equipment and bar equipment. 

The Tenant shall be solely responsible for the repair or teplacement of any such property or 
equipment damaged, destroyed, or stolen during the operation of the Tenant1s banquet and catering 
opcnltions. 

I 0.2 Tenant does herein intend lo acquire additional items of property to be utilized in the 
entering ope:ration at tho Leased Premises. All said items purchased to be utilized by the Tenant 
shall be separately stored and maintained on the Leased Premises. Upon the expiration of the lease 
tC'Jl11, the Tenant shall have the option to remove said Items of personal property. 

11, INSURANCE 

l J. l During the term of this Lease. the Tenants will procure and maintain business
liability insurance and shall do and perfonn any and all acts necessary to indemnify Landlords end 
keep Landlords hannlcss from any liability or claim for damages that may be asserted against 
Landlords because of any accident or casualty occurring on or about the premises. The Tenants 
shall, at their own expense and cost. obtain and keep in force a poliey or policies of public liability 
insurance and property insurance with an insurance company approved by Landlords, with liability 
coverage of not less than Oae Million ($1,000,000.00) DoUars for injwy or death to any one person: 
One Million ($1,000.000.00) Dollars for iqjury or death ·ro more than one person. and One Million 

· (St,000,000,00) Dollars for damage to property. The Tenants shall procure and maintain an
Umbrella policy covering the Landlord City for perils due to the operation of the premises and the
management and dispensation of alcohol at the leased premises.

11.2 The Tenants shall furnish Landlords with certificates or other evidence acceptable to 
Landlords indicating that the in.surant:e is in effect and providing that Landlords shall be notified in 
writing at least thirty (30) days bcf ore �llation of. or any material change in with ceg11rd to the 
renewal of said policy. The Landlords shall be fur1her named as additional named Insureds on said 
policies of insurance. 

l 1.3 The Tenant does further herein agree that the Landlord shall lJ\aintain liquor liability
insurance coverage as a portion of its overall insurance coverage for the subje<:t property. The 
Tenant shall reimburse Landlord for any insurance premium charges that increase for the additional 
alcohol sales that may be generated from the Leased Premises and paid pursuant to the terms of this 
Lease AgreemcnL Said liquor liability charges shall be audited on lhc aMivcrsn.ry date of the lease 
tenn, that being for the Initial period of July 1. 2011 through Jwie 30. 2012, and for every year 
thereafter, 

page 4 



l l .4 Any insurance maintained by Tenants pursuant to this paragraph shall oontain a
clause or endorsement under which.the insurer WBives all rights of subrogation against the other 
party or Its agents or employees with respect to losses payable under this policy. 

11.S Any property kept on the premises by the Tenen� sbnll be kept lhere at Tenants' sole
risk. Tenants shall maintain property insurance for their respective business assets at their sole 
expense. Tenant, IU'C aware: that Landlords shall bw � responsibility for the maintenance of 
insurance with regard to.th!: Tenants' property. 

1;_ ��-DF.SIGNA1'ED AS IND.§PENDENT CONfRACTOR

12.1 The Landlotd and Tenant do herein acknowledge that the Landlord does not 
maintain any management mponsibilities regarding the banquet and paterlng enterprise of the 
Tenant and that the Tenant herein is acting as an independent contractor in the administration. 
mnrketing, and use of the Leased Premises. 

122 Tenant shall be solely responsible for paymenl of all federal, state, and locnl 
employment taxes for its employees. 

12.3 Tenant shall further be responsible to maintain sufficient workers compensation 
insumnce for all of ib mp"tive employees BDd to provide to Landlord certificates of insurance 
eonfinnlng the existence of said insurance coverages. 

13. INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS

l 3.1 The Landlord and Tenant do herein acknowledge 11181 the Landlord docs not assume
any liability for any act and/or omission by the Tenant or its agents or invitee.,. The Tenant agrees 
to indemnify the Landlord and hold the Landlord and its respective officers. employees and 
members hannless for any claim or any kind or nature whalSoever arising out of or resulting from 
any acts and/or omissions by the Tenant. Its agents, invitees, representatives and/or employees. 

14. SIGNS AND ADVERTISING

14. l All signs and advertising displayed in and about the premises shall be such as to
only advertise the business carried on in said premises. The Landlords shall control the size and 
character thereof: No sign shall be displayed unless approved in writing by Landlords although 
permission shall not be unreasonably withheld. No mwifi�tiom, improvements or repairs shall be 
made 10 the exterior of the premises without prior written approval by the Landlords. 

15. ASSIGNMENT OF LEASE

15.1 The r�mm13 shall not sell, assign, mortgage. pledge, or µi any manner transfer this 
lease or sublet the premises, or any portion of the premises without Landlords' prior written consent, 
which shall not be Ul'll'Wonably withheld. In the event of any assignment or sublease. Tenants shall 
remain ftilly liable on this lease, The Landlords' right to assign this lease is unqualified. Upon any 
sale of the premises ln whicb the purchaser assumes all obligations under this Lease, the Landlords 
shall be entirely free of all obligatlons of the Landlords under this lease and shall not be subject to 
any liabiUty resulting from any act, omission. or event occwring after the conveyance. Tenants 

page fS 



COMMERCIAL LEASE AGREEMENT AMMENDMENT 

11tls Amendment is made and entered into this /B day of t-J&M�, 2011. by and
between the CITY OF SOUTHGATE, a Municipal Corporation, by and throu its authorized
representatives, whose address is 14400 Dix-Toledo Road, South2ate . .MI 48195, hereinafter
referred to as "Landlords," and CRYSTAL GARDENS, !., a Michigan
Corporation, by ROGER J. ROELS, its President, whose address is 16703 Fort Street, Southgate,
MI 48195, hereinafter referred to as "Tenant."

RECITALS 
WHEREAS, the Landlord and Tenant are currently engaged .in a public-private partnership

to provide professional food services in the City of Southgate, County of Wayne, and State of
Michigan; and

WHEREAS, the Landlord does maintain at its premises certain banquet facilities and
restaurant operations known commonly as the Gate Clubhouse; and

WHEREAS, the Tenant is in the enterprise of managing banquet facilities and has a level of
expertise in the administration, managing, marketing, and catering of banquet facilities and food
service operations;

NOW, THEREFORE, it is herein agreed by and between the Landlord and Tenant shall
modify the current Agreement as follows:

1. LEASED PREMJSES

1.1 Landlords hereby lease to Tenants, and Tenants hereby lease from Landlords, a
certain portion of commercial real property hereinafter called the "Leased Premises". Said Leased
Premises are primarily the Gate Club House and adjoining areas including the kitchen, bar area,
restrooms, storage rooms, and other adjoining portions of the property and common areas.

1.2 Landlord and Tenant do herein acknowledge that Tenant shall have a non-exclusive
use of the Leased Premises with the Landlord retaining the ability to utilize the defined premises for
its own purposes.

1.3 Tenant does herein have the exclusive right to market the respective Leased
Premises for banquet service. The Tenant's ability to market said premises shall be exclusive
except for the rights retained by Landlord.

2. USE AND TERM

2.1 The term of this agreement shall commence on April 1, 2012 and continue for a
period of three (3) years through March 30, 2015.

2.2 The Landlord and Tenant shall have a mutual right to extend the use and term of this
Commercial Lease Agreement.

2.3 The Landlord and Tenant do further acknowledge that any additional extensions to
the Commercial Lease Agreement shall be negotiated between the respective parties.

page 36 



2.4 Toe Landlord and Tenant do further herein acknowledge and agree that either party 
herein may tenninate the Commercial Lease Agreement with the providing of a one hundred eighty 
(180) day notice. The parties do herein acknowledge and agree that any events that may be
calendared for date in excess of said notice period shall be exempted and the terms and condition of
the Lease Agreement shall apply to said pre-calendared events.

3. CONSIDERATION AND RENT

3.1 Tenant shall pay Landlord a rental based on the gross receipts generated by the 
Tenant in the provision of banquet, catering, and concession services at the Leased Premises. Said 
consideration shall be determined and paid for each rental year as follows: 

3.1.A Beginning April 1, 2012 rent shall be paid as follows: Crystal Gardens shall 
pay for all utilitcs generated by the Southgate Club House Resturant and pay 
15% of all gross sales after the first $175,000 including; food, beverage, and 
vending concessions. 

4. USE OF PROPERTY

4.1 The Tenant shall use and occupy the premises as designated by the Landlord for a 
banquet or catering operation and for no other purpose without the prior written consent of the 
Landlord. All menu changes and pricing shall be subject to the approval of the Landlord. 

5. MASTER AGREEMNT

5.1 The Parties hereby agree to adopt the terms of master Lease Agreement and 
incorporate all terms and conditions contained therein. 

6. EFFECTIVE DATE

6.1 Landlords and Tenants have signed this lease and it shall be effective on the date 
listed at the beginning of the Agreement. 

GmGROSSE ILE, INC. 

J. ROELS, its President
page 37 



Promissory Note 

October 10, 2023 

For value received the undersigned promises to pay to the order of the City of Southgate, a municipal 

corporation, the principal sum of Twenty-Five Thousand dollars ($25,000.00). Said principal shall be paid 

by the undersigned in lawful money of the United State of America As follows: 

Payable in full on or before August 15, 2024. A minimum monthly payment of One Thousand dollars 

($1000.00) shall be collected by the 15th of every month beginning November 15, 2023. Any remaining 

balance to be paid in full by August 15, 2024 

Should default be made in the payment of the principal due hereunder, then such default shall mature 

the entire indebtedness evidenced hereby, without notice, at the option of the holder thereof. Every 

person at any time liable for the payment of the debt evidenced hereby waives presentment for 

payment, demand and notice of non-payment of this note, and consents that the holder may extend the 

time of the payment any part or the whole of the debt at any time at the request of any other person 

liable. The city of Southgate may then enter Consent Judgement in the amount of $25,000.00 in a court 

of competent jurisdiction, said judgment attached hereto and incorporate by reference. 

Southgate Crystal Garden - SOF Inc. 

A Michigan Corporation 

BY: Roger K. Roels, its President 

page 38 



Approved, SCA0 

STATE OF MICHIGAN 

JUDICIAL DISTRICT 

JUDICIAL CIRCUIT 

JUDGMENT 

Civil. 

Original • Court 
1st copy • Plaintiff 
2nd copy • Defendant 

CASE NO. 

Court address Court telephone no. 

Plaintiff(s) 
rT'he City of Southgate, a Michigan Municipal Corporation 

Plaintiffs/Plaintiffs attorney name, address, and telephone no. 
EDWARD M. ZELENAK P2761 I 
2933 Fort Street 
Lincoln Park MI 48146 

V 

Defendant{s) 
Southgate Crystal Gardens-SOF, inc. 
A Michigan Corporation 

[2] JUDGMENT

For: City of Southgate 

313-386-6400 Against: Southgate Crystal Gardnes-SOF, Inc.

□ Trial
□Summary Disposition

[2] Consent 
D Default* 

Defendant's/Defendant's attorney name, address, and telephone no. 
Southgate Crystal Gardens-SOF, Inc. 0 DISMISSAL 
by Roger Roels, its President 
16703 Fo11 Street 

D Without prejudice D With prejudice 

Southgate MI 48195 
D No cause of action 
•For a defendant on active military duty, default 
judgment shall not be entered except as provided by 
the Servicemembers Civil Relief Act. 

Damages: 
I ORDER OF JUDGMENT NOT INCLUDING STATUTORY INTEREST I 

$ ___ 2_s�,o_oo�.o_o 
Costs (fees): filing$ ____ jury$ ____ motion $ _____ service $ ____ _ 

statutory$ _____ {MCL 600.2441) $ _____ _ 
Attorney fee: D statutory D other (specify) __________________ $ _____ _ 
Total judgment amount (This judgment will earn interest at statutory rates, computed from the filing date of the complaint.): $====25

::::
':::::00=0=.0=0 

D The defendant shall pay the judgment in installment payments of$ _______ each ________ starting 
until the judgment is paid in full. The plaintiff shall not issue a periodic garnishment as 

long as payment is made. 
Other conditions, if any: 

0 Approved as to form, notice of entry waived. 
IT IS ORDERED that this judgment is granted. 
This judgment resolves the last pending claim and closes the case unless checked here. D

Judgment date Judge/Court clerk 

Plaintiff/Attorney Defendant/Attorney 

Bar no. 

Judgment has been entered and will be final unless a motion for new trial or an appeal is filed within 21 days after the judgment date. 
I STATUTORY INTEREST I 

The judgment interest accrued from the filing of the complaint to judgment is$ _______ and is based on: 
(If additional rates apply, attach a separate sheet.) 

D the statutory rate of ___ % from ________ to _______ _ 
D the statutory 6-month rate(s) of ___ % from to and 

___ % from to ________ _ 

I CERTIFICATE OF MAILING I I certify that on this date I served a copy of this judgment on the parties or their attorneys by 
first-class mail addressed to their last-known addresses as defined by MCR 2.107(C)(3). 

Date 

MC 10 (3/16) JUDGMENT, CIVIL 

Signature 
page 39 

MCL 600.2441, MCL 600.5759, MCL 600.6013, MCL 600.8375, MCR 2.601, 
MGR 2.602, MGR 2.603, 50 USC App 521 



JOSEPH G. KUSPA 

Mayor 

JANICE M. FERENCZ 
City Clerk 

- CIT\' COUNqL -

ZOEYKUSPA 
Co111tcil Pre,vllfe11t 

CHRISTOPHER P, ROLLET 

Treasurer 

Qltty nf �nut49utr 

CHRISTIAN GRAZIANI 

BlLLCOLOVOS 

KAREN E, GEORGE 

PHILLll' J. RAUCH 

PRISCILLA AYRES-REISS 

GREG KOWALSKY 

Memorandum 

To: Honorable City Council Members

From: Dan Marsh, City Administrato�

Date: October 12, 2023

Re: Resolution for Charitable Gaming License for a Southgate Based Non-Profit

Touchdown Titans Booster Club, a Southgate based non-profit entity, is organized under
the Michigan Non-Profit Corporations Act 1625 of 1982. It received State approval to
operate as a 501(c)(3) on December 29, 2021.

The Touchdown Titans Booster Club, is requesting a resolution for Charitable Gaming
License. These resolution requests the City Council to recognize Touchdown Titans
Booster Club as a non-profit organization operating in Southgate. If adopted the
resolution by City Council will be forwarded to the State by the organization to seek a
charitable gaming license. The organization does rely heavily on donations and
fundraising events for funding.

Please contact me with any questions.

Proposed Motion: To approve the requesf of Touchdown Titans Booster Club, of 
Southgate Ml, to be recognized as a nonprofit organization operating in the community 
for the purpose of obtaining a charitable gaming licenses. 

NORMA J. WURMLINGER MUNICIPAL BUILDING 

14400 DIX-TOLEDO ROAD• SOUTHGATE, MICIIIGAN 48195 • 734-258-3022 • FAX: 734-246-1414 

page Cl 

q1> 



LOTTERY 

Chatltoblo Gomlng Olvislon 
Box 30023, Lensing, Ml 48909 
OVERNIGHT DELIVERY: 
101 E. Hlllsdole, Lensing Ml 48933 
(517) 335-5780 
www.mlchlgon.gov/cg 

LOCAL GOVERNING BODY RESOLUTION FOR CHAR.ITABLE GAMING LICENSES 
(Required by MCL.432.103(K){II)) 

Ata ______________ _ 
REGULAR OR SPECIAL 

meeting of the ___________ _ 
TOWNSHIP, CITY, OR VlllAGE COUNCIL/80ARO 

called to order by ________________ _ on _________ _
DATE 

at ______ a.m./p.m. the following resolution was offer-ed: 
TIME 

Moved by and supported by 

that the request from _____________ _ of _________ _, 
NAME OF ORGANIZATION CITY 

county of ________________ , asking that they be recognized as a 
COUNTY NAME 

nonprofit organization operating in the community for the purpose of obtaining charitable 

gaming licenses, be considered for __________ _ 

APPROVAL 

Yeas: 

Nays: 

Absent: 

APPROVAVDISAPPROVAL 

DISAPPROVAL 

Yeas: 

Nays: 

Absent: 

I hereby certify that the foreg.oing is a true and complete copy of a resolution offered and 

adopted by the ata 
TOWNSHIP, CITY. OR VILLAGE COUNCIL/80ARO REGULAR OR SPECIAL 

meeting held on ______________ _ 
0/UE 

SIGNED: ________________________ _ 
TOWNSHIP, CITY, OR VILLAGE CLERI< 

PRINTED NAME ANO TITLE 

ADDRESS 

COMPI.ETION: Requll&d. 
PENAL.TY: Posslble- donml ol ti >llenOon 

BSL·CG, 1153(R6/09) 

page 41 



Filed by Corporations Division Administrator Filing Number: 222555617740 Date: 05/24/2022 

MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF LICENSING AND REGULATORY AFFAIRS 

FILING ENDORSEMENT 

This is to Certify that the ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION 

for 

TOUCHDOWN TI TANS BOOSTER CLUB 

ID Number: 802858715 

received by electronic transmission on May 18, 2022 , is hereby endorsed. 

Filed on May 24, 2022 , by the Administrator. 

The document is effective on the date filed, unless a subsequent effective date within 90 days after 
received date is stated in the document. 

In testimony whereof, I have hereunto set my 
hand and affixed the Seal of the Department, 
in the City of Lansing, this 24th day 

of May, 2022. 

�� 
Linda Clegg, Director 

Corporations, Securities & Commercial Licensing Bureau 

page 42 



LARA Home Contact LARA Online ServiCHS N�)WS 

ID Number: 802539218 

Summary for: TITANS TOUCHDOWN BOOSTER CLUB 

The name of the DOMESTIC NONPROFIT CORPORATION: TITANS TOUCHDOWN BOOSTER CLUB 

Entity type: DOMESTIC NONPROFIT CORPORATION 

Identification Number: 802539218 

Date of Incorporation in Michigan: 10/22/2020 

I Purpose: Other 

I Term: Perpetual 

Most Recent Annual Report: 2023 Most Recent Annual Report with Officers & Directors: 2023 

The name and address of the Resident Agent: 

Resident Agent Name: 

Street Address: 

BOBBY MARTEN, HEAD FOOTBALL COACH 

15475 LEROY 

Apt/Suite/Other: 

City: SOUTHGATE State: MI Zip Code: 48195 

Registered Office Mailing address: 

P.O. Box or Street Address: 15475 LEROY 

Apt/Suite/Other: 

City: SOUTHGATE State: MI Zip Code: 48183 

The Officers and Directors of the Corporation: 

Tille Name Address 

PRESIDENT JILL COCHRANE 13372 MARK SOUTHGATE, MI 48195 USA 

TREASURER KELLY PORTER 23819 EMILY DRIVE BROWNSTOWN, MI 48183 USA 

SECRETARY SARAH KUNTZMAN 12862 NETHERWOOD SOUTHGATE, MI 48195 USA 

DIRECTOR KERRY PORTER 23819 EMILY DRIVE BROWNSTOWN, MI 48183 USA 

DIRECTOR MITCH DOBEK 15475 LEROY SOUTHGATE, MI 48195 USA 

DIRECTOR BOBBY MARTEN, HEAD FOOTBALL COACH 15475 LEROY SOUTHGATE, MI 48195 USA 

Act Formed Under: 152-1982 Nonprofit Corporation Act 
Acts Subject To: 162-1982 Nonprofit Corporation Act 

The corporation is formed on a Membership basis . 

l .. : Written Consent 

Ml.gov 

a e43 
'-----------------------------------------------<10-..C...O.., 



View filings for this business entity: 

I View filings I 

Comments or notes associated with this business entity: 

/, 

LARA FOIA Process Transparency Office of Regulatory Reinvention State Web Sites 

Michigan.gov Home ADA Michigan News Policies 

Copyright 2023 State of Michigan 

page 44



Touchdown Titans B.ooste.r Club· 
Article 1: Narrie 
.Section 1 - The· name orthis organization ·shall be the.To·uchdowri Titans Booster- Club, 
hef�afte.r referted to a.s thE;l 1TBC. 
Section 2.-The address of the TTBC Will be the same·as the official address for·.southgate
Ander�on High SchooL Th.at addre$.S· i$.15475 Leroy Southgate, Ml 481 �5 . .Alternafo a.ddresses · 
may be that of ·a11y active member of the JTBC ·.so a.rd of Directors while they are r officially acting 
·.as a representative of the TTBC.

· · · · · 

Article 2: Purpose & Mission Statetnent
.secfion··1 - The mission .ofthe ·Touc)1d9wn Titan.s Boo�t�r Club ·1s to· provide SJ.JppbrHor the 
Tltan Foott>'�l.l.p.rograf'r1 throtJgh fundr�i�i.ng, con:irtiQt'lity iriv0lvement an.d. sc�qol s·piri.t. ]Us our
goal to enhance the T

.
ltans Football program.to build pride in the'play'ers· and coaches and 

cr�ate open community and .student support.for th� ��am. Through financial support, we will 
provide .. both the ·�ecessitie•s ·ah� the extrai;'thatwill enaple·.th.e-:program to compete· wit.h other 
·top prog.rams ·at the level assigned by the Michigan Hl�.h School Association.

Section ·2 -The· foll0wing are the primary purposes· .ofthe TTBC .
. 1: Support the financial needs of the Sollthg.ate Anderson ·Football Pr.ogram.
2. S�ek to encourage c;:o.ach�s. pl�y?rs, ·parents•, t�achers, stw;fents, aqministration and the

community to promote the ideals of good sports·manship, honesty.,. loyalty; and
commitment.

·3 .. · Suppqr.t ,he co?1ching staff to help i:irdduQe. football';teams of the highe�t competitive 
level. 

4. Elev.at� the football team's and player's image. in �he eyes of the·.s.chool; community and
themselve�:

5: Encourage total cci'miTiunity participation in the organizatiori .
. 6.. Support. the. football program, win or lose, through· p.ersonal

. 
involvement .hthe purpo.se 

of the. org�niza.tion. 
t ... To re.main..Q n9o�p1ofit:org;miz.afi.Qfi:fP...r:�v.�r, .... 

Section 3 - Code. of Conduct 
1., .All rh.embers of th� TTB.C shall a9.t !n rjood faith �t all ·events- (�pcial· and alhlettc). Af.lY 

conduct that is violent or abusive• in nature shall be tdnsidei'ed just cause for dismissal 
·from membership ir, the TTBC, Suc.h actions should be reported in writing to'the
Execl.itiV!3'•Board·st�tfng the following: 

. 

:a. The na'ture ofthe· offensive action in detail. 
.b. Th� qate·of.the occurrence. 
c. The.report must be signed l;>Y the individual reporting the;incident
.d, .A review shall be conducted, and a vote shall be taken at the hext ·regulatly

schedul.ed meeting, oMh.e Executive ·so.ard on what actions. sh.ould be taken. 
·�t No meinb�r'of th� TTB.C will.in .any way llse. h)s/h¢r po�itfon tq influence the coa.ches 

with·regatd to the play!ng ·time·of a:son 'or daughter hi:a game·. 

page 45 



Art1eIe·3 - General membershi(? 

·f. General membership. in this :a::faociation .shatl-be held by any mother; father, step-·parent
or legaf·guardian of boy�·or girls parilGlpattng ln·the ath.letic program. The onfy exception 
tq this rul�-.. at .the dlscretlon of ttie Pres.lq�nt; with .the apprnv_ar .of.the· E�ecutivE;i Bdard, 
wi·II be past participants who have continuous ·ser..,ice with this organization

Article 4:·0fficers·, Board of Directors and Elections· 
Section-1 - Elected Officers 

1. Officers wfll be elected annually otr or before..the first.August-association meeting o.f the
TTBQ. Officer-nomrnatrc;,_11s will .. occw no iater th�A the J�ly ass9ciati.on meeting o(the
TTBC .. 

i the new officer:swfo official
.
ly assume-tlieirr esponsibilities on January 1 ofthe ·next 

calenqary�ar .. Current year officers will continue to han�le all .�us.ine�s that is 
conducted. Newly elected officers· ·shadow the· current year officers•fortheir respective 
positions from Aug.usUhrough December·before as$uming their respective positfons on 
Janu�ry 1 .o"f.the next caiendar: year..

3. The,elected officers 0tth·e-club. shall be President, Vice President; Secretary and
Treasurer,

4. l,n aqdition-to th� 9fficers.listed. <i!bove, the previous .year's·club Pres°idel'.lt sh�lf-serve a$
an officer"in ·the ·capadty Qf Past President.

5_. Th.e .elected officers will serve a one0year temn that nrns from January t through 
Pec�mt;i�r-31. 

6: If elected, the o'fficers· may serve additional terms up to ·a ·maximum of four terms total, 
so long as .they are a cur.rent member in good standing of the· TTBc· as· defined by
these byla'ws. 

7. All-officers niust be members in ·good standihg· of the TTBC.

s·ection 2 -- Executive Board of Directors_. __ ... . . . .. .  
·1. The Executive Bo·ard ofDir·ectors i's made up of:the President, Vice-President, .Secretary,

treasurer-and Head Footba·n Coa_c_h. 
2. The Executive Board ofDirectors'shall meet �n Qcilr oy ,he President.
:3.- A minimu'm ofThree· (3). tnembers·_of the Executive· Board 6f Directors· must be

in attendance at an Executive B.oard meeting for TT.BC bU$lne$_S to b�. 
conducted. 

4. The· Executive Board of Direttors· shall have supervisory cohtrol ·over all of the business
of theTTl3C _ex9ept during ·the. election. of officers.

Section 3 - Compensation 
1. N·o officer-or·director.shal.l be·entitled to receive-any.salary or-comp�m;atlon (monetary

or otherwise) for'sehiices. pe_rforrned by hir:n/h�r �s suoh officer of directodcidhe
TT.BC

. Section ·4 -- Election of Officers 

page 46 



1. All officers ot the 911).b shall be eleqted �nnually with tne exception oHh� PasrPresiqent
and Head Football.Coach.

2.. All officers. wil! l;>e nomlnateq and then el�cted ,by a majority vote. 
B. The· officers shall ·be·.elec_ted to serv.e for one_ fisca..'I year.
.4. The. officers: elected musfbe-members,Jn good standi�g· of the TTBC per the

r.eqt,Jfrernerits a,s established by these _byJaws. 

Settion 5 -Vacancies 
1. In the event .vacancies In the. Executive Boarct'of Directors shall oc<::ur for Whatever

reason, the President shall nomin,ate a.suc_c�_ssqr·or. s_uccessonrt9 serve, out the
unexpired terin. The ·successor or successors will be ra�ified. by .a .majority vote by a
quorum of the �xecutlve boafd.

2-, [n the. event of atemporary absence of tile Pi'esldeni, the Past President or tne·\iic;:e 
President shall Chair.the Exe·cutive Board of Direct6rs for• the period of absence (as
appointed .by Jhe !?resident) 

Article 5: Board ·and General.Membership Meetings 
Sectfort 1 - General Meetings 

1.· General meetings dfthe Tou:chdowriTltans Booster Club will be held-� minimum-of
once per month be9.in�ihg in ·March a�d runnin_g·th;o�gh the-mo.nth bf'Nov�mber.·

�- The-me�_ting schequJe fqr thE? yearwlll be established_priorfo-the.iriitic;1l ,general 
rne·mbersh.ip· meeting for the.vear and will b.e· presented .at the firsf if$0 meeti_ng <;>f 
each·year'. 

�. Notic� 9f the time,. 0ate.�nc;J P.lc:!Ce.of the regular m�etings shall be a web posting or
announced via mail, email_ or ph,0ne call .. Me�tiiigs shall b�' open-to. all in'terest�d 
persons 

4. An. emergency meeting may be:cr;tfled by tne ExeGytive Board of Di.rectors prov.ided that
a minimum of seven (7) ca_lendat days of.notice has·�een proviqed_.to the .gen.era!
membership via any of the fQllowitig methods; •mail,. email, web posting or-phone call.

·Section 2 - Quorums at Meetings
1. There must. b_e a -quorum ·of six (6) acUve memb.eri:; including the Executive Board-of Dire.ctors
at a general 'rn(;3mbe'rs�ip t'neetlng ·h-i _orderfor offjci.al TTBC business. to be_..con�ucted.

Section 3- Executive Board of Directors Meeting and Standing/SpecialCommittees-
'1, The Executive Boarcl may conduct_ bu_siness Pf;!tween schedule.d general meeting d�_te.� 

in.order.to l<.eep.-the organization in good standrn·g. In orderfof official TTBC business 
·t() be conducted �t called Executive Boar.cl Meetih_gs,:there. rnust be a quorum of at
least four (4). Execa_tive Bpa_rq Members i_n att�ndance,

2. The presiaentw1II estabiish dates for Executive Board of-Directors rv,eelings.
3·. It is expected that standing and specially appointed committee meetings will

°

'be held 
periodically outside ·of the-ge·neral Ji'lem.�e.rship. and. E)CE:leutiv� Board Meetings. No.
offidial TTBC business Will be executed at these meetfngs; however, jt 'is· expected_ ti, at

the 

page 47 



chairs of,svch �tanding and special committees. wHI. provide updates' and reports lo the

club o'r to the Executive.Board. of Director's ·at scheduled n:iee:tirigs a·9 detailed ln Sectlori 
1 ··&nd ih Secti,on $ of Arti.c!e 5., 

Section 4 - Voting 
1'. Only mernbers in 99.otj:�tan.ding, with the TTBC and who haVE;ratlen·qed at leasUwo 

(2) association meeting_ (inc,lud_ing the i:r1_eeting for the election) ar.e:.ellg!ple to·vote. 
2.. Eac.h. TTSC meml;>er shall. be entitled to orily one yote. 
·3, A/notion. sha.11 b� c_a.rried py-a majority of votes.

Articles·-: Powers, Resgonsibiiitles, and Duties of Officers 
Sec:tion 1 � President 

1' ThePresident shali :be the Chief.Officer of the Club. The Presideiltshall preside at all tti\3 
meetings of'.the E:icecutive Boqrd of Oirectqrs.and. of tll.e .. general .membership. The ·
President shall perfo'r'm such other executive duties �s a·ssi�ried t,o"her/hi,ni by the 
g�neral club tpembership, 

2. The. President shaU appo_int. a. Chairperson .for ��ph c·ommittee when th�. nef:ld arise9
sh·ould no member volunteer, Such ·committees would include those Standing ano
$pecial Committ�e.s provided for- in-Article? of this docum!3nt.

3. The president has the authqr,ityto �uth9ri4,l3._aliy purchase .up .to $5000 th�t has been
outlined [n the TTBC annual operating and ·c·apifal bud_Qef, a�'s_umi'rig that the i;lrinu_al·
oudget Dc\S been presented to the club. and approved ·by both the Executive Board -of
Directors and.the general rnembership at a p,ub_licfzed ge_n.enil_membership meeting.

Section 2 - Vice President 
1., .. The VP shall b'e! responsible for le.ading: the·activities-aroµnd ·fi.!ndrai?ing for the

TTBC. The VP shall work.With a FundraisingCommittee Ghairp·ers_on to carry out the 
varlou$· f.i.Jndraising p�ojects. 

'2. The VP s)iall work· wit_h other meirlbers ·.of the Ex:ecutive. Boaro of D(rectors-to kJentlfy 
a:nd approve the .. pr,imaiy fundraising activities of the· club. 

S. ... .'.rh�V.f'. will a.ls.P. b.e, pr.lm.arily .responsibl.e.Jor determining the.anticipated income.-and_ .. ..
expense for all funq�c;:1ising_ �·ctiliities a_rtd will. help .develop the-TTBC annual revf;!riue
and expense budget line items around thO'se activities. 

4. The VP,:along with. the President, �half be r�sponsible for overseelng all ,the operational
aspects ofthe·TTBC. This-sha:11 include managef.neJ1t"ofthe·standing op_�r�tron;:il
cc;,rnmittees.

Set:tlon,3 ,- Secretary 
1. The Secretary s.ha!I ke.ep a record ofall the minutes of both the General Membership

:and th� Ex;ec4tiv:e Board of bireptors. At-each General Membership·rneeting,. t.he.
•Secretary·will pr.esent a copy ofthe minutes of the previot1s Genera.I Members.hip
· meeting for review and appr�vai ·by .the TTBC. A

. 
co·py of the minutes will be made 

• availa.ble· tci �ach member by h9rd copy-at the general membership meeting ..

page 48 



2. T�e· Secret:ary is also. responsible.for performing _pr. coordinating a11·co.mmunicc1tions and
corresponden·ce activities with the general .membership of the TTSC. This· incl!Jges
wqrking dosel.y with :the C:ornrn:uoic.ati<;ins Committee. Chairperson in these endeavors.

3. The Secretary sn•alf proviae notiGe of ail reg1,.1lar and special meet.lngs, mafntain a ·regist�y
.of'names, email ,addresses, .. phone :numbers ·tmd mailing .addresses of all membe'rs and
officers,: a.nd �eep,copi�s on f'ileforfuture n�ference. · 

-4. The Secretary will work tlos·ely with tt)e Head Football Coach ·to �nsur�: appro-,:>ri;3te
comrnµniQ�tion rs maln.taineq b�tween the Co.ach ·and·ttie-parefits or°the football-players ..
.The· Sec�et�ry will also.rnai�talil -a _roster of �I.I current. player,� In. the program inc.!uc;lfng
contact Information .for each player and ·their family, The Secretary·may assist the .Head 
Fo,ptbc;1II C.oac;:h jr., .other-are�s as: weil to mi:ike. ,sure that the TTBC. :and Football .Program
Corhmuriicatlons tun .sm.ooth.ly, 

5. The Secretary will also oversee·the·football team's calendarofevents.
6.. The.'Sec[etary will Jn add/tion,. perform such other dutie$:,and exercise.powers as the.

President shall properly assign. 

Section 4 � Treasurer 
1. The Tteasurer shall. be tf1e custodian ofthe.funds .ofthe .. cli.!b. The Treasurer shall

receive mo.nies .and.deposit-them with theTTBC bank account: ln addition, the
Tre�surer s�_all. keer:i a se.t o.f f(r:i.ancial recorps of all receipts an<:! expen,ditwes of'the
club.

_,2. 'The Tr�ai,urer shc!IJ provide·� report o'f fwnds on.:h�md and.receipts and expenditures-at 
e:acti _regt.1lar Gener<;1I Menil;ierShip meeting of the club as well as each meeting of .the 
Executive Board of Ditectots, 

3. The. Treas.u,rer:, with assistanc� trnm th� E!oard. of Directors; is responsible·for·pr.eparin·g
a b1;1dget to .. be·pres�nted and ·c;ipproved no la�er th?n the May ·n:ieeting,

4. The:Treasurer shall perform sl:Jch other duties and e�erclse._such:powers as .th�
Presipent ma.y .properly as�lgn.

,se.ctlon 5 -Approval :arid Spending of Funds 
1., .... A!! pqrcha.S�$.JQdhe_.TlBO __ or Titan Footb1:1ll:pr.pgram musthav.e2 .. slgnatures:of 

approval. Approv.�I sign_atures are lirriited to the Pres_iqent, .Tre�si.Jrer an.d He�d Cea.ch 
or school administrator: 

Article 7; Apeoirited Committees I Leadership 
._Section 1 -Appointment and Responsibilities of Committees 

1. c:;ommittees and th�ir re!;ipectiv� chairperson shall be appoin�!:ld. by thE: Pre.sident,ofthe
· TTBC to perform $pacific futrctiorfs; .such as· fund raisin9_,. men)bersrylp 'drives,
communications, facility. im_provements, -special evehts, and other support activities.
These Gomm ittees. cliid- Committee Chafrper.�ons shall serve-until co.m pl�tion of their
desig_na:ted activity ot untn dismissed by the president

·2. The -responsibilities of each. committee· shall .be as desigMted ahd assigned by the
Preside·nt .. of th.e TTBC. No committee, ?tanding or �pecia! sh�II .conduct official 
TTBC business, 

page 49 



Settion·.2 - standing Committees 
1. The following Is th·e. llst ofstanding .committees for the TTBC.

a. F\Jr;iqn;ii�lng
b. VolUrite�r-
c. Special Events
cl_. Conce$sions_.

Artfole·S: Fiscal.Year, Budget. and Management.of" Funds
Section 1 - Fiscal Year and Review 

1. The fiscai year of.-lhe TTBC shall run from June 1 to May 31 bfthe folfowing year .
. 2. The nnanc;:ia! records shall i;>e-(eviewed annually by the Executiv.e BQard- Qf bi rectors to

e"nsure ·appropriate fiscal manag·ement pr.actices are- �ei_ng employeq. ah,d .H'.1" er:isu�e 
com_pli�nc_e with these bylaws . 

. Section 2 - Budget and Approval"
1·. The President will work with the Executive Board of Directors ·ar'ld the chairpersons of all

standi_ng cqmmittees fo c;levelpp an c:!nr:tu�I ope�ating .buc!get for the TTBC, 
2. The. Pres jdent will present the prdpc;>sed })i.Jdget to tt:i"e- g�:fneral' m'e"rn_bership for approva 1 ·

annualiy at.the May g_eneral membership meeting.-�- Oqce approved, the bugget will \,.erve as. th_e guide for oper_ations and disbursen:ient of
funds for t_he TTBC. 

Section.:3 """'.C.ompensation of Individuals 
1. No part of fhi;n1et �arnings of the TTBC shall provid_e a.:rec:1l qr perceived benefitto

a_ny member or officer of the org�nizatlon, ·or-any private ir:lC:jjv'idµal_ {except_that
reasonable expense.reimbursement" m�y .. be paid .for services rendered to or for the
orgartizatipn}".

2. No member or officer of th_e "TTBC or any private· indivic;lual shal_l be e·ntitled to share in.
the distribution of any ofthe· assets on disso·lution of the-organization:

Section 4.-Annual Carryover of Funds 
1, The TTB.C shalf .rnaihtafn a minimum of $1000 or10% o·f the previous y_ear's ·annual 

QP�r.:;iting re:v.en\.:I,�$ (w.,h1c.hev.er {§_greater) -�s.� .carryover offumts. tor .ttie start.up .of the. 
next Y,ear'.s TTBC. 

Section 5 - Dissolution of-the TTBC 
1. Upon disso.lution oft�� TTB.C and aftef"payin_g or adequ_a(�ly provid.ing for d�bts: �nd

obligatforis of the club., the full amount of the remaining assets shall be distributed to -the
-footpall account of Southg·ate Anderson· High ·school.

Article .9: Quorum 
Section 1 - Executive Board of Directors 

1. A-rne_eting where, th.ere_ is· representc;1t1on of f ol!r (4) or more ·merrtbe"rs· oft he
Executive Board of Directors will constitute a quorum for official TTBC business tc;i pe
conductac;l.

2. · Once c\ q_uorl.llll is. esta blls·hed, -a majority vote of those preserJt wili be··.sufficie_nt to
,approve business dedsidns on behalf of the Executive Board of Directors.

Section 2 - Gerieraf Membership 

page 50 



1 .. A general membership meeting where th!:¼re is repre$entatlon of-sjx•{6) orm�re 
members of the club present and in·.good st�irtdit"lg will cbm;ti.tute a quorum·:tor the 
p!Jrp_ose of conducting officif:II TT.BC l::lu.sines�. The ciuorum of 6 mem6ets-may 
include :members of th·e Ex�_cutive Board of Directors !:l� Well. 

2. Once.a.Qeneral.rnembership quorum 1s estabilshed, a ma:jority·vote ofthose·preseritwill
�E;1. suffipier.it to_. approve .busines_s _decisions qn b�halfof t.he"tTBC:.

Article .10: Uncovered Situations. 
Section 1 - Uncovered Situations 

1. The Executive 8<:Jard of Directors· in· a m::inner that-is- clearly in alignment. with the stated
Missior, an<:t Pu_rpQl:-8 olthe TTE�C shall deal with ariy .and all situations that may arise
that ·are not:e,<plk:itly covered-by"these·bylaw.s.

i. .After reviewing any-sjtuafions that·appear to not:be._covered by these.bylaws, the
Execut_ive Board -of Directo� will rn�ke recomrnenda_tion$ as-to whether the bylaws
should be amended to cover the hoted.situatio"n·in the future.

Article·11: Indemnification 
Section 1 ,- Indemnification of Executive Board 

1.. Each person Who acts .as ·a, member of tre E;xecutive E3Qard of Dlrectors_·shalJ be 
indemnified bithe TTBC against expenses actually af!d neces$arily inc.urred by him/her. 
in .connection with 1tlie defense of any ·.action, ·suit, or proceeding in ·which he/she··-is made 
·a pc1rty by r.easor, of hi$/her being or helving been _a member .c,f the Exe�utivE;! Board of
Directors exGept in relation-fO""rhatters as·t.o which he/she $h·an l:>e adJuogeq In such
·action,. suit, or proceedin·g to be liable for·gross .. n¢gligence.or willful misconduct; and
�.ccept any sutn ·paict•for th_e.TTBC iil settlernent of an-actior:i. suit or p.roc.eedi11g !;>ased
on gross negligence. or"willful· miscoriduct in-the perfor_mah_ce of duties.

2.. The.rightof"indemHification-prov.ided herein shall.Jncurto each Dir.ectorand Officer 
.reforred to in para9raph 1 wh!:!th�r or· not he/sh� is such Dir(;'!c;tor or Officer at the time 
.such costs· or expenses are imposed or Incur.red, arid in the.event of his/he( d�ath shall 
extend to _his/her l_egal representatives. 

-ArtiC:le-12: Amendments and Revisions
Section 1 -·Amendments-

1. These byraws may ·.be amended or.-revise_q to accommodate necess�ry-changes that will
support the ongoing operations ofthe TTBC.

2. Any sugg�sie1:l" _chang�s t9 th.e.se bylaws- must first be p�esent_ed .In. writing to the
Exem.itive·-so.ard of Directors. ff the ·Exe_c;qtive- Board recommends the. changes, then the
_proposed changes will. be. presented tl:l the ·general rtiembership l3t a r.egularly scheduled
gen�ral membership meeting. Appr.qva_l of any proposeo qmendment wtll".be ,by a ½vo_te
of the ·rnernbetship in good standing and iii afteridaJJc� .at lh� meeting wher"e. th� .
. amendment was presented,

page 51 



·3. SJio_uld·a properly presentedbylaws·ch�nge:suggestionbe qenied bythe boarcl,..a
p.etition containing signatures·· of af 1easf25% of the g�ne.ral membersn_ip in 909d
$tanding .sh?!f farGe·a vo\e of'thegen�rai m.�rnbership on the suggested change.

4. The�� bylaws shall re.main _iii effec(fonh_e life of th� eluJ:i or i.Jntrt..revised ulilitl11g the 
procedures outlined In Article 1<2", Section 1 included herein 

10'10/2023 

page 52 



� 
Department of the Treasury 

fm Internal Revenue Service 

IRS 
Tax Exempt and Government Entities
P.O. Box 2508 
Cincinnati, OH 45201 

TOUCHDOWN TITANS BOOSTER CLUB 
13432 CUNNINGHAM STREET 
SOUTHGATE, MI 48195 

Dear Applicant: 

Date: 

12/29/2021 

Employer 10 number: 

85-3615715

Person to contact: 

Name: Customer Service 

ID number: 31954 
Telephone: 877-829-55 00 

Accounting period ending: 

December 31 

Public charity status: 

170(b)(1 )(A)(vi) 

Form 990 / 990-EZ / 990-N required: 

Yes 

Effective date of exemption: 

October 12, 2020 

Contribution deductibility: 

Yes 

Addendum applies: 

No 

DLN: 

26053679003861 

We're pleased to tell you we determined you're exempt from federal income tax under Internal Revenue Code 
(IRC) Section 501(c)(3). Donors can deduct contributions they make to you under IRC Section 170. You're also 
qualified to receive tax deductible bequests, devises, transfers or gifts under Section 2055, 2106, or 2522. This 
letter could help resolve questions on your exempt status. Please keep it for your records. 

Organizations exempt under IRC Section 501(c)(3) are further classified as either public charities or private 
foundations. We determined you're a public charity under the IRC Section listed at the top of this letter. 

If we indicated at the top of this letter that you're required to file Form 990/990-EZ/990-N, our records show 
you're required to file an annual information return (Form 990 or Form 990-EZ) or electronic notice (Form 
990-N, the e-Postcard). If you don't file a required return or notice for three consecutive years, your exempt
status will be automatically revoked.

If we indicated at the top of this letter that an addendum applies, the enclosed addendum is an integral part of 
this letter. 

For important information about your responsibilities as a tax-exempt organization, go to www.irs.gov/charities. 
Enter "4221-PC" in the search bar to view Publication 4221-PC, Compliance Guide for 501(c)(3) Public 
Charities, which describes your recordkeeping, reporting, and disclosure requirements. 

Sincerely, 

�cl.,-� 

Stephen A. Martin 
Director, Exempt Organizations 

Rulings and Agreements 

oae:e 53 
Letter 947 (Rev. 2.!'202lJ'} 
Catalog Number 35152P 



JOSEPH G. KUSPA 

Mayor 

JANICE M. FERENCZ 

City Clerk 

CHRISTOPHER P. ROLLET 

Treasurer 

<Uity nf �nutqgntr 

Memorandum 

To:

From:

Date:

Re:

Honorable City Council Mem�r� :0
Laura Walsh, Mayor's Offic�

October 11, 2023

Updated Smart Bus Driver Drug and Alcohol Policy

- CITY COUNCIL

ZOE Y KUSPA 

Council President 

CHRISTIAN GRAZIANI 

BILL COLOVOS 

KAREN E. GEORGE 

PHILLIP J. R AUCH 

PRISCILLA AYRES-REISS 

GREG KOWALSKY 

Attached for your review is an updated copy of the Drug and Alcohol Policy 
related to our SMART Bus Drivers. The original policy was adopted at your June
15, 2022 City Council Meeting. We recently were made aware that some 
adjustments needed to be made to our policy, those updates are highlighted in
the document. 

Your concurrence on the adoption of this updated policy would be greatly
appreciated. 

pager, 

�NORMA J. WURMLINGER MUNICIPAL BUILDING 

14400 DIX-TOLEDO ROAD• SOUTHGATE, MICHIGAN 48195 • 734-258-3022 • FAX: 734-246-1414 



FT A Drug and Alcohol Policy - City of Southgate 

City of Southgate 

Drug and Alcohol Policy 

Effective as of June 15, 2022 

Adopted by: _____ _ Date Adopted: [06/15/2022) 

Last Revised: [10/18/2023) 

page 55 
Page 1 of 10



FT A Drug and Alcohol Policy - City of Southgate 

Table of Contents 

1. Purpose of Policy ................................................................................................................................. 3 

2. Covered Employees ............................................................................................................................. 3 

3. Prohibited Behavior ............................................................................................................................. 3 

4. . Consequences for Violations ............................................................................................................... 4 

5. Circumstances for Testing ................................................................................................................... 4 

6. Testing Procedures .............................................................................................................................. 7 

7. Test Refusals ........................................................................................................................................ 8 

8. Voluntary Self-Referral ........................................................................................................................ 9 

9. Prescription Drug Use .......................................................................................................................... 9 

10. Contact Person .................................................................................................................................... 9 

page 56

Page 2 of 10



Ff A Drug and Alcohol Policy - City of Southgate 

I. Purpose of Policy

This policy complies with 49 CFR Part 655, as amended and 49 CFR Part 40, as amended. Copies of 

Parts 655 and 40 are available in the drug and alcohol program manager's office and can be found on the 

internet at the Federal Transit Administration (Ff A) Drug and Alcohol Program website 

http://transit-safety.fta.dot.gov/DrugAndAlcohol/. 

All covered employees are required to submit to drug and alcohol tests as a condition of employment in 

accordance with 49 CFR Part 655. 

Portions of this policy are not Ff A-mandated, but reflect City of Southgate's policy. These additional 

provisions are identified by bold text. 

In addition, DOT has published 49 CFR Part 32, implementing the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, 

which requires the establishment of drug-free workplace policies and the reporting of certain drug-related 

offenses to the FT A. 

All City of Southgate employees are subject to the provisions of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 
1988. 

The unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession or use of a controlled substance is 
prohibited in the covered workplace. An employee who is convicted of any criminal drug statute for 
a violation occurring in the workplace shall notify J)an Ma;�ii;'j:;J�t.Administrato no later than 
five days after such conviction. 

2. Covered Employees

This policy applies _to every person, including an applicant or transferee, who performs or will perform a 

"safety-sensitive function" as defined in Part 655, section 655.4. 

You are a covered employee if you perform any of the following: 

,.. __ ..,,..,..,_.,__,,,,....,,.._,__. __________ _,,,, __, • . QQerating i:; 

• Controlli ~ .• , • _

See Attachment A for a list of covered positions by job title. 

3. Prohibited Behavior

Use of illegal drugs is prohibited at all times. Prohibited drugs include: 

• marijuana

• cocaine

• phencyclidine (PCP)

page 57 
Page 3 of 10



FT A Drug and Alcohol Policy - City of Southgate 

• opioids
• amphetamines

All covered employees are prohibited from performing or continuing to perform safety-sensitive functions 
while having an alcohol concentration of 0.04 or greater. 

All covered employees are prohibited from consuming alcohol while performing safety-sensitive job 
functions or while on-call to perform safety-sensitive job functions. If an on-call employee has consumed 
alcohol, they must acknowledge the use of alcohol at the time that they are called to report for duty. If the 
on-call employee claims the ability to perform his or her safety-sensitive function, he or she must take an 
alcohol test with a result of less than 0.02 prior to performance. 

All covered employees are prohibited from consuming alcohol within four ( 4) hours prior to the 
performance of safety-sensitive job functions. 

All covered employees required to take a post-accident test are prohibited from consuming alcohol for 
eight (8) hours following involvement in an accident or until he or she submits to the post-accident drug 
and alcohol test, whichever occurs first. 

4. Consequences for Violations

Following a positive drug or alcohol (BAC at or above 0.04) test result or test refusal, the employee will 
be immediately removed from safety-sensitive duty and referred to a Substance Abuse Professional. 

Following a BAC of0.02 or greater, but less than 0.04, the employee will be immediately removed from 
safety-sensitive duties until the start of their next regularly scheduled duty period (but for not less than 
eight hours) unless a retest results in the employee's alcohol concentration being less than 0.02. 

Treatment/Discipline 

��citfof§outhgaie poli0Y., an); 9.11P 
o]4.for Tefu�es ta test will be susgend 
oischarged for the second offense: 

�t@loY:ee$ who s�eks treft . y. a SU stanceab . .----· 
i� 

empl@:Yee may use sick; persona: of vacat1gn tun.l: __ , 
suspension .. 

5. Circumstances for Testing

Pre-Employment Testing 

Pre-employment alcohol tests are conducted after making a contingent offer of employment or transfer. 
All pre-employment alcohol tests will be conducted using the procedures set forth in 49 CFR Part 40. An 
alcohol test result ofless than 0.02 is required before an employee can first perform safety-sensitive 

page 58 
Page 4 of 10



Ff A Drug and Alcohol Policy - City of Southgate 

functions. If a pre-employment alcohol test is cancelled, the individual will be required to undergo 

another test with a result of less than 0.02 before performing safety-sensitive functions. 

A negative pre-employment drug test result is required before an employee can first perform safety

sensitive functions. If a pre-employment test is cancelled, the individual will be required to undergo 

another test and successfully pass with a verified negative result before performing safety-sensitive 

functions. 

If a covered employee has not performed a safety-sensitive function for 90 or more consecutive calendar 

days, and has not been in the random testing pool during that time, the employee must take and pass a 

pre-employment test before he or she can return to a safety-sensitive function. 

A covered employee or applicant who has previously failed or refused a DOT pre-employment drug 

and/or alcohol test must provide proof of having successfully completed a referral, evaluation, and 

treatment plan meeting DOT requirements. 

Reasonable Suspicion Testing 

All covered employees shall be subject to a drug and/or alcohol test when City of Southgate has 

reasonable suspicion to believe that the covered employee has used a prohibited drug and/or engaged in 

alcohol misuse. A reasonable suspicion referral for testing will be made by a trained supervisor or other 

trained company official on the basis of specific, contemporaneous, articulable observations concerning 

the appearance, behavior, speech, or body odors of the covered employee. 

Covered employees may be subject to reasonable suspicion drug testing any time while on duty. Covered 

employees may be subject to reasonable suspicion alcohol testing while the employee is performing 

safety-sensitive functions, just before the employee is to perform safety-sensitive functions, or just after 

the employee has ceased performing such functions. 

/rhe em lo ee shall 

reasons for the failur.e 

Post-Accident Testing 

Covered employees shall be subject to post-accident drug and alcohol testing under the following 

circumstances: 

Fatal Accidents 

page 59 
Page 5 of 10



Ff A Drug and Alcohol Policy - City of Southgate 

As soon as practicable following an accident involving the loss of a human life, drug and alcohol 

tests will be conducted on each surviving covered employee operating the public transportation 

vehicle at the time of the accident. In addition, any other covered employee whose performance 

could have contributed to the accident, as determined by City of Southgate using the best 

information available at the time of the decision, will be tested. 

Non-fatal Accidents 

As soon as practicable following an accident not involving the loss of a human life, drug and 

alcohol tests will be conducted on each covered employee operating the public transportation 

vehicle at the time of the accident if at least one of the following conditions is met: 

(1) The accident results in injuries requiring immediate medical treatment away from the

scene, unless the covered employee can be completely discounted as a contributing

factor to the accident

(2) One or more vehicles incurs disabling damage and must be towed away from the

scene, unless the covered employee can be completely discounted as a contributing

factor to the accident

(3) The vehicle is a rail car, trolley car or bus, or vessel, and is removed from operation,

unless the covered employee can be completely discounted as a contributing factor to

the accident

In addition, any other covered employee whose performance could have contributed to the 

accident, as determined by City of Southgate using the best information available at the time of 

the decision, will be tested. 

ifhe emplqy�eshaif. 
,.,,._.._;.,.,,..,._ 

" I 
µo .... -. 

-�� 

��toe�ight, 
,.....,_.,_.,. __________________ ,...,. _____ ......,... 

' 

testi�-:::.:::.....:.:.:;::,:.:.:::.:.::::.=::::..:::,�;=..::.�;:;;.:::.:;::::;;,:;:�::.:,::;::.;:::;;:;;:::::;:;::::::=:.::=:.:::::=�:::;�:;;:;:��;::...,....,,_=a ,--,, .. 
�u�� 

•.;.:,.::.::;::;:::::::::!:;..'.:�::::;:::���.::::!:::.=,:::.:::::::::::::::::�-.;;:.:..��:;;,;;;:,.;:;;:;;�;;;::;;:;:;::;-:-' l J)gurs ,.,_,, e drugtest'witlili 

A covered employee subject to post-accident testing must remain readily available, or it is considered a 

refusal to test. Nothing in this section shall be construed to require the delay of necessary medical 

attention for the injured following an accident or to prohibit a covered employee from leaving the 

scene of an accident for the period necessary to obtain assistance in responding to the accident or to 

obtain necessary emergency medical care. 

Random Testing 

Random drug and alcohol tests are unannounced and unpredictable, and the dates for administering 

random tests are spread reasonably throughout the calendar year. Random testing will be conducted at all 

times of the day when safety-sensitive functions are performed. 

page 60 
Page 6 of 10 



FT A Drug and Alcohol Policy - City of Southgate 

Testing rates will meet or exceed the minimum annual percentage rate set each year by the FTA 

administrator. The current year testing rates can be viewed online at 

www.transportation.gov/odapc/random-testing-rates. 

The selection of employees for random drug and alcohol testing will be made by a scientifically valid 

method, such as a random number table or a computer-based random number generator. Under the 

selection process used, each covered employee will have an equal chance of being tested each time 

selections are made. 

A covered employee may only be randomly tested for alcohol misuse while the employee is performing 

safety-sensitive functions, just before the employee is to perform safety-sensitive functions, or just after 

the employee has ceased performing such functions. A covered employee may be randomly tested for 

prohibited drug use anytime while on duty. 

Each covered employee who is notified of selection for random drug or random alcohol testing must 

immediately proceed to the designated testing site. 

Return to Duty Testing 

Any employee who is allowed to return to safety-sensitive duty after failing or refusing to submit to a 
DOT drug and/or alcohol test must first be evaluated by a substance abuse professional (SAP), complete a 
SAP-required program of education and/or treatment, and provide a negative return-to-duty drug test 
result and/or an alcohol test result of less than 0.02. Any return-to-duty drug testing will be directly 
observed. All tests will be conducted in accordance with 49 CFR Part 40, Subpart 0. 

Follow-up Testing 

Employees returning to safety-sensitive duty following a return-to-duty test will be required to undergo 
unannounced follow-up alcohol and/or drug testing for a period of one (1) to five (5) years, as directed by 
the SAP. The duration of testing will be extended to account for any subsequent leaves of absence, as 
necessary. The type ( drug and/or alcohol), number, and frequency of such follow-up testing shall be 
directed by the SAP. 

A covered employee may only be subject to follow-up alcohol testing while the employee is performing 
safety-sensitive functions, just before the employee is to perform safety-sensitive functions, or just after 
the employee has ceased performing such functions. A covered employee may be subject to follow-up 
drug testing anytime while on duty. All follow-up drug tests will be directly observed. All testing will be 
conducted in accordance with 49 CFR Part 40, Subpart 0. 

6. Testing Procedures

All FT A drug and alcohol testing will be conducted in accordance with 49 CFR Part 40, as amended. 

Page 7 of 10



FT A Drug and Alcohol Policy - City of Southgate 

Dilute Urine Specimen 

If there is a negative dilute test result, City of Southgate will accept the test result and there will be no 
retest, unless the creatinine concentration of a negative dilute specimen was greater than or equal to 2 
mg/dL, but less than or equal to 5 mg/dL. 

Dilute negative results with a creatinine level greater than or equal to 2 mg/dL but less than or equal to 5 
mg/dL require an immediate recollection under direct observation (see 49 CFR Part 40, section 40.67).

Split Specimen Test 

In the event of a verified positive test result, or a verified adulterated or substituted result, the employee
can request that the split specimen be tested at a second laboratory. City of Southgate guarantees that the
split specimen test will be conducted in a timely fashion. [fhe··spii:i'specimentest will be conducte atrtH
,.. . - . ' _, - -� 

expense of the employee; 

7. Test Refusals

As a covered employee, you have refused to test if you: 

(1) Fail to appear for any test (except a pre-employment test) within a reasonable time, as
determined by City of Southgate.

(2) Fail to remain at the testing site until the testing process is complete. An employee who leaves
the testing site before the testing process commences for a pre-employment test has not refused
to test.

(3) Fail to attempt to provide a breath or urine specimen. An employee who does not provide a
urine or breath specimen because he or she has left the testing site before the testing process
commenced for a pre-employment test has not refused to test.

( 4) In the case of a directly-observed or monitored urine drug collection, fail to permit monitoring
or observation of your provision of a specimen.

( 5) Fail to provide a sufficient quantity of urine or breath without a valid medical explanation.
( 6) Fail or decline to take a second test as directed by the collector or City of Southgate for drug

testing.
(7) Fail to undergo a medical evaluation as required by the MRO or City of Southgate's Designated

Employer Representative (DER).
(8) Fail to cooperate with any part of the testing process.
(9) Fail to follow an observer's instructions to raise and lower clothing and turn around during a

directly-observed test.
(10) Possess or wear a prosthetic or other device used to tamper with the collection process.
(11) Admit to the adulteration or substitution of a specimen to the collector or MRO.
(12) Refuse to sign the certification at Step 2 of the Alcohol Testing Form (ATF).
(13) Fail to remain readily available following an accident.

Page 8 of 10



FT A Drug and Alcohol Policy- City of Southgate 

As a covered employee, if the MRO reports that you have a verified adulterated or substituted test result 

you have refused to take a drug test. 
' 

As a covered employee, if you refuse to take a drug and/or alcohol test, you incur the same consequences 

as testing positive and will be immediately removed from performing safety-sensitive functions, and 

referred to a SAP.

8. Voluntary Self-Referral

Any employee who has a drug and/or alcohol abuse problem and has not been notified of the 
requirement to submit to reasonable suspicion, random or post-accident testing or has not refused a 
drug or alcohol test may voluntarily refer her or himself to !Dan Marsh, C_ity Administr_ato� who 
will refer the individual to a substance abuse counselor for evaluation and treatment. 

The substance abuse counselor will evaluate the employee and make a specific recommendation 
regarding the appropriate treatment. Employees are encouraged to voluntarily seek professional 
substance abuse assistance before any substance use or dependence affects job performance. 

Any safety-sensitive employee who admits to a drug and/or alcohol problem will immediately be 
removed from his/her safety-sensitive function and will not be allowed to perform such function 
until successful completion of a prescribed rehabilitation program. 

9. Prescription Drug Use

The appropriate use of legally prescribed drugs and non-prescription medications is not prohibited. 
However, the use of any substance which carries a warning label that indicates that mental 
functioning, motor skills, or judgment may be adversely affected must be reported to the City 
Administrator. Medical advice should be sought, as appropriate, while taking such medication and 
before performing safety-sensitive duties. 

I 0. Contact Person 

For questions about City of Southgate's anti-drug and alcohol misuse program, contact panMars�:· ciQ1 
Administrator. 

Page 9 of 10



FT A Drug and Alcohol Policy - City of Southgate 

Attachment A: Covered Positions 

All Senior Center Bus Drivers. 

All Department of Public Service positions requiring a COL.\ 

Page 10 of 10


